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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of
DMI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of DMI FINANCE
PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as "the Group”), its associate and joint venture, which
comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2024, and the consolidated
statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of material
accounting policies (“the Consolidated Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, and based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial
statements of the subsidiaries, and joint venture referred to in the Other Matters section below,
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of their consolidated state of affairs of the
Group, its associate and joint venture as at 31 March 2024, of consolidated profit, consolidated
total comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI") together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in sub-para (a) and (b) of the Other Matters
paragraph below is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters

to be communicated in our report.:

Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit
matters

(a) Impairment of financial assets as at balance sheet date (expected credit losses)

Ind AS 109 requires the Holding Company to
provide for impairment of its loan receivables
(designated at amortised cost and fair value
through other comprehensive income) using
the expected credit loss (ECL) approach.
ECL involves an estimation of probability
weighted loss on financial instruments over
their life, considering reasonable and
supportable information about past events,
current conditions, and forecasts of future
economic conditions which could impact the
credit quality of its loans and advances. In
the process, a significant degree of
judgement has been applied by the
Management for:

- Staging of loans i.e., classification in
‘significant increase in credit risk’ (‘SICR’)
and ‘default’ categories;

- Estimation of behavioural life;

- Determining macro-economic factors
impacting credit quality of receivables;

- Estimation of losses for loan products with
no/ minimal historical defaults

Read and assessed the Holding Company
accounting policies for impairment of
financial assets and their compliance with
Ind AS 109 and the governance framework
approved by the Board of Directors pursuant
to Reserve Bank of India guidelines.

Evaluated the reasonableness of the
Management estimates by understanding
the process of ECL estimation and related
assumptions and tested the controls around
data extraction and validation.

Assessed the criteria for staging of loans
based on their past due status to check
compliance with requirement of Ind AS 109.
Tested a sample of performing (stage 1)
loans to assess whether any SICR or loss
indicators were present requiring them to be
classified under higher stages.

Assessed the additional considerations
applied by the Management for staging of
loans as SICR or default categories in view
of Holding Company’s policy on one-time
restructuring.

Tested the ECL model, including
assumptions and underlying computation.
Assessed the floor/ minimum rates of
provisioning applied by the Holding
Company for loan products with inadequate
historical defaults.

Tested assumptions wused by the
Management in determining the overlay.

Assessed disclosures included in the
consolidated financial statements in respect
of expected credit losses.




(b) IT and system controls

Financial accounting and  reporting
processes, especially in the financial
services sector, are fundamentally reliant on
IT systems and IT controls to process
significant transaction volumes, hence we
identified IT systems and controls over
financial reporting as a key audit matter for
the Holding Company.

Automated accounting procedures and IT
environment controls, which include IT
governance, general IT controls over
program development and changes, access
to programs and data and IT operations, are
required to be designed and to operate
effectively to ensure reliable financial
reporting

We tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the Holding Company's IT
access controls over the information
systems that are important to financial
reporting and various interfaces,
configuration, and other  identified
application controls.

We tested IT general controls (logical
access, changes management and aspects
of IT operational controls). This included
testing requests for access to systems were
reviewed and authorized.

We tested the Holding Company’s periodic
review of access rights. We also tested
requests of changes to systems for approval
and authorization. In addition to the above,
we tested the design and operating
effectiveness of certain automated controls
that were considered as key internal controls
over financial reporting.

Information Other Than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report

Thereon

* The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The

other information comprises the information included in the annual report but does not
include the Consolidated Financial Statements and our Auditor's Report thereon. These
reports are expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the Consolidated Financial Statements, or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read information included in annual report, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with
governance as required under SA 720 'The Auditors Responsibilities relating to other
information'.




Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation
of these Consolidated Financial Statements in term of the requirements of the Act, that give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance
(including other comprehensive income), consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement
of changes in equity of the Group including its associate and joint venture in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group and of, its associate and joint venture are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Group and its associate and joint venture and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have
been used for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements by the
Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group and of its associate and joint venture are responsible for
assessing the ability of the Group and of its associate and joint venture to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless Management either intends to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associate
and joint venture are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group
and of its associate and joint venture.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated
Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is




higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has
adequate internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the
Group, and joint venture to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group and its joint venture to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial Statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

+ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities within the Group, its associate and joint venture to express an opinion on the
Consolidated Financial Statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the
Consolidated Financial Statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other
entities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements, which have been audited by
other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company of which we
are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,




in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

a) We did not audit the Financial Statements of two subsidiaries whose Financial Statements
reflects total assets(before consolidation adjustment) of Rs.896.25 millions as at 31 March
2024, total revenue (before consolidation adjustment) of Rs. 223.93 millions for the year
ended 31 March 2024, net loss after tax (before consolidation adjustment) of Rs. 69.45
millions for the year ended 31 March 2024 and total comprehensive loss (before
consolidation adjustment) of Rs. 68.85 millions for the year ended 31 March 2024 and net
cash inflows (before consolidation adjustment) of Rs. 267.67 millions for the year ended 31
March 2024, as considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements. The Consolidated
Financial Statements also include the Group's share of net loss after tax of Rs.36.45
millions for the year ended 31 March 2024 and total comprehensive loss of Rs. 36.45
millions for the year ended 31 March 2024 respectively, as considered in the Consolidated
Financial Statements, in respect of one joint venture. These financial statements have been
audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Board of Directors
and our opinion on the Consoclidated Financial Statements, in so far as it relates to the
amounts and disclosures included in respect of these entities, is based solely on the report
of such auditors and the procedures performed by us are as stated Auditor's Responsibility
section above.

b) We did not audit the Financial Statements of one of the subsidiary, whose Financial
Statements reflects total assets of Rs. Nil as at 31 March 2024, total revenue of Rs. Nil for
the year ended 31 March 2024, loss after tax of Rs. 0.26 millions (up to the date of transfer)
for the year ended 31 March 2024 and total comprehensive loss of Rs. 0.26 millions (up to
the date of transfer) for the year ended 31 March 2024 and net cash outflows/(inflows) of
Rs. Nil for the year ended 31 March 2024 as considered in the Consolidated Financial
Statements. The Consolidated Financial Statements also include the Group's share of net
loss after tax of Rs.20.99 millions (up to the date of transfer) for the year ended 31 March
2024 and total comprehensive loss of Rs. 20.99 millions (up to the date of transfer) for the
year ended 31 March 2024, as considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements, in
respect of one associate. These financial statements are unaudited and have been
furnished to us by the Board of Directors and our opinion on the Consolidated Financial
Statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of
these entities is based solely on such unaudited Financial Statements. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us by the Board of Directors, these
Financial Statements are not material to the Group.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements above, and our report on Other Legal
and Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with
respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of other auditors and the financial
statements certified by the Management.




Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order”) issued by
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, based
on the audit report issued by us for the Holding Company and based on our consideration
of the audit reports issued by respective auditors of the two subsidiaries and one joint
venture included in Consolidated Financial Statements, we report that there are no
qualifications or adverse remarks in these reports.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit and on the consideration of
reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information
of subsidiaries and its joint venture, as noted in the 'Other Matters’ paragraph, we report, to
the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors except for the matters as
stated in the paragraph 2(j)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this report are in agreement
with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on 31 March, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiaries and joint venture
incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies and its joint venture
incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31 March, 2024 from being appointed as a director
in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Group and its joint venture incorporated in India and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in ‘Annexure A'.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
the requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Holding Company being a private company, Section 197 of the Act related to the
managerial remuneration is not applicable.




(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based
on the consideration of the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements as
also the other financial information of the subsidiaries and its joint venture, as noted in the
‘Other Matter’ paragraph:

i. The Group and its joint venture do not have any pending litigations which would impact
its financial position in its Consolidated Financial Statements — Refer Note 46 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements;

i. The Group and its joint venture did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-
term contracts including derivative contracts.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries and joint venture
incorporated in India.

iv. (a) The respective Managements of the Holding Company, its subsidiaries and joint
venture, which are companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements have
been audited under the Act, have represented to us and the other auditors of such
subsidiaries and joint venture that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any such
subsidiaries or its joint venture to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company
or any of such subsidiaries or its joint venture (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The respective Managements of the Holding Company, its subsidiaries and joint
venture which are companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements have
been audited under the Act, have represented to us and the other auditors of such
subsidiaries that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have been received
by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries or its joint venture from any persons
or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries
or its joint venture shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors of
the subsidiaries and joint venture which are companies incorporated in India whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our or other
auditors’ notice that has caused us or other auditors to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) contain any material misstatement.




v. The Holding Company, its subsidiaries and joint venture have not declared or paid any
dividend during the year and have not proposed final dividend for the year.
vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, and that performed by the

respective auditors of the subsidiaries, and joint venture which are companies
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act,
except for the instances mentioned below, the Holding Company, subsidiaries, and joint
venture have used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the
financial year ended 31 March 2024, which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software.

(a) In respect of the Holding Company and one of its subsidiaries incorporated in India,
the feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility of the accounting software used
for maintaining the books of account for the financial year ended 31 March 2024
was not enabled. Consequently, we are unable to comment on the operating
effectiveness of the audit trail

(b) In respect of one subsidiary, the accounting software used for maintaining their
books of accounts for the financial year ended 31 March 2024, did not have a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility. Consequently, we are unable to
comment on audit trail requirements of the said software, as envisaged under Rule
11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended.

(c) Further, the financial statements of one of the subsidiaries and associate which
have been transferred during the year are unaudited and have been furnished to
us by the Management. Therefore, we are unable to comment on the reporting
requirement under Rule 11 (g} of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
in respect of the said subsidiary and associate.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended is
applicable for the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
which are companies incorporated in India, only w.e.f. 1 April 2023, therefore, reporting
under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, on
preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not
applicable for financial year ended 31 March 2024.

For S.N. Dhawan & COLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 000050N/N500045

Manth

Manish Surana

Partner

Membership No.: 503812
UDIN: 24503812BKFMTU7005

Place: Gurugram
Date: 16 May 2024



Annexure A

Independent Auditor’s report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the company as of and
for the year ended 31 March, 2024, we have audited the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements of DMI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED (hereinafter referred to
as the "Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries and joint venture, which are companies
incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its joint venture which are
companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
respective company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance
Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI"). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the company’s
business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of the
company's assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

The audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
aforementioned subsidiaries, which are companies covered under the Act, and reporting
under Section 143(3)(i) is exempted vide MCA notification no. G.S.R. 583(E) dated 13 June
2017 read with corrigendum dated 14 July 2017. Consequently, our responsibility is to express
an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Holding Company, and its joint venture as aforesaid, based on our audit and based on the
consideration of the report of the auditor of the joint venture. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the
ICAI") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls,
both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The




procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the
other auditors is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements of the Holding
Company, and its joint venture as aforesaid.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detalil, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Financial
Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.




Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company, and its joint venture, which are companies incorporated
in India, have, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls system with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at 31 March, 2024, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the respective company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.N. Dhawan & COLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:000050N/N5000

MW
Manish Surana

Membership No.: 503812
UDIN: 24503812BKFMTU7005

Place: Gurugram
Date: 16 May 2024



DMI Finance Private Limited

Notes to the lidated financial for the year ended March 31, 2024

{. Impalrment of financlal assets

1. Overview of the impalrment principles {'ECL')
In accordance with Ind AS 109, Lhe Group is required Lo measurc cxpected ¢redit losses on ils financial instrumenls designated at amortized cost and fair value through
other comprehensive income Accordingly, the Group is required to determine lifetime losses on financial instruments where credit risk has increased materially since its
origination. For olher instruments, the Group Is required to recognize credit losses over next 12 month period. The Group has an option to determine such losses on
individual basis ar collectively depending upon the nature ol underlying portfolio, The Group has a process to assess credit risk of all exposures at each year end as
follows:

Stage |

These represent exposures where there has not been a material increase in credit risk since initial recognition or that has low credit risk at the reporting date The Group
has assessed that all standard exposures {i ¢ exposures with no overdues} and exposure upto 30 day overdues (all under this categary. In accordance with Ind AS 109,
the Group measures ECL on such assets over next 12 months

Stage Il

Financial instruments that have had a material increase in credit risk since inilial recognilion are classified under this stage Based on empirical evidence, malerial
increase in credit risk is witnessed alter the overdues on an exposure exceed for a period more than 30 days Accordingly, the Group classifies all exposures with
overdues exceeding 30 days at each reporting date under this Stage The Group measures lifetime ECL on stage Il loans.

Stage I

All exposures having overdue balances for a periad exceeding 90 days are considered to be defaults and are classified under this stage Accardingly, the Group measures
lifetime losses on such exposure Interesl revenue on such contracts is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortized cost {net of impairment
allowance) instead of the gross carrying amount The method is similar to Stage Il assets, with the probability of default set at 100%.

When estimating ECL on a collective basis for a group of similar assets, the Group applies the same principles for assessing whether there has been a material increase In
credit risk since initial recognition

il. The calculation of ECLs
The mechanics of the ECL calculation involve the use of following key elements:
Probability of default {PD) - The probability of default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon {12-manth or lifetime, depending upon the
stage of the asset). PD estimation is done based on historical internal data available with the Group
Exposure at default (EAD) — It represents an estimate of the exposure of the Group at a future date after considering repayments by the counterparty before the default
event accurs The outstanding balance as at reporting date is cansidered as EAD by the Group. Considering the PD determined above factors in amount at default, there
is no separate requirement to estimate EAD.
Loss given default (LGD) — It represeats an estimate of the loss expected to be incurred when the event of default occurs The Group uses historical loss data/external
agency LGD for identiflied pools for the purpose of calculating LGD

iil. Definition of Default and cure

The Group considers a financial instrument as defaulted and classifies it as Stage 11l {credit-impaired) for ECL calculations tygically when the borrower becomes 90 days
past due on contractual payments The Group may also classify a toan in Stage Il if there is material deterioration in the financial condition of the borrower or an
assessment that adverse market conditions may have a disproportionately detrimental effect on the loan repayment. Thus, as a part of the qualitative assessment of
whether an instrument Is in default, the Group also considers a variety of instances that may indicate delay in or non-repayment of the loan. When such events occur,
the Group carefully considers whether the event should result in treating the barrower as defaulted and therefore assessed as Stage Il for ECL calculations or whether
Stage Il is appropriate.

Classification of accounts inta Stage Il is done when there is a material increase in credit risk since initial recognition, typically when contractual repayments are more
than 30 days past due

It is the Group's policy to consider a financial instrument as ‘cured” and therefore re-classified out of Stage It or Stage Il when none of the default criteria which resulted
in their downgrade are present

iv. Forward looking information
While estimating the expected credit losses, the Group reviews macro-economic developments occurring in the economy and market it operates in On a periodic basis,
the Group analyscs if there is any relationship between key cconomic trends like GOP, Unemployment rates, Benchmark rates set by the Reserve Bank of India, inflation
et with the estimate of PD, LGD determincd by the Group based on its internal data. While the internal estimates of PD, LGD rates by the Group may not be always
reflective of such relationships, temporary overlays are embedded in the methodology to reflect such macra-economic trends reasonably

v. Write-offs
Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Group has no reasonable expectation of recovery If the amount to be written off is
greater than the accumulated loss allowance, the difference recorded as an expense in Lhe period of write off Any subsequent recoveries are credited to impairment on
financial instrument on statement of profit and loss

vl.Collateral repossessed
The Group's palicy is to sell repossessed assets. Non-financial assels repossessed are Lranslerred to asset held for sale at fair value less cost Lo sell or principal
outstanding whichever is less at repossession date

n) Share based payments
Equity-settled share based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date
The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity settled share based payments is expensed on a straight line basis over the vesting year, based on the Group's
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting year, the Group revises its estimate of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss such that the

cumulative expenses reflects the revised estimate, with a carrespanding adjustment to the Share Based Payments Reserve

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share

)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting pravided to the chief operating decision maker The Group's primary business segments
are reflected based on the principal business carried out, i.e. lending aclivities as Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC} regulated by the Reserve Bank of India {‘RBI')- The
risk and returns of the business of the Group is not associated with geographical segmentation, hence there is no secondary segment

Interest In Subsidiarles, assoclate and Joint venture entltles

Investment in subsidiaries and associate entities are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount
of the investment is assessed and written down value immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investment in subsidiaries or the loss of materlal influence over
jointly cantrolled entities, the difference between net dispasal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognised in the statement of profit and loss

[

Recent pronouncements

Ministry of Corparate Alfairs {“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies {indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time
to time. For the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Group.
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Corporate Informatlon
DMI Flnance Private Limited is a Private Limited Company ("The Company” or "The Holding Company") incorporated on September 02, 2008 under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 having Corporate Identification Number is {CIN) U64930DL2008PTC182749

The Company engaged in lending activities as Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) regulated by the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI'). The Company had obtained its licence from
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) to operate as Non deposit Accepting Non Banking Financial Company {NBFC-ND) on January 05, 2009 vide registration No. RBI N-14,03176.

The registered office of the Company is located at Express Building, 3rd Floor 9-10, Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg New Delhi

These financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on 16th May 2024

Basis of preparatlon of FInanclal Statements

a) Slatement of compliance

b

o

d)

The consolidated financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards {"lnd AS’ or 'the Accounting Standards') notified under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 {the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other refevant provisions of the Act

All amount disclosed in the consolidated financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest Rupces millions as per the requirements of Schedule Ill, unless
olherwise slated

Basis of preparation and presentation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time and notified under section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 {the act) along with other relevant provisions of the Act and the Master
Direction - Nan-Banking-Financial Company Systemically Important Non-Depasit taking Company and deposit taking company (Reserve bank) Directions, 2016 {‘the NBFC
Master Directions’) as amended issued by R8I. The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupces {INR} and all valucs are rounded to the millions, excepl when otherwise indicated

Basls of measurement
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis as a going concern and under the historical cost convention except for the assets and liabilities
measured at fair value as follows:

certaln financial assels and liabilities and contingenl consideration is measured at [air value;
assets held for sale - measured at fair value less cost to sell;

defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value; and

share-based payments — measured at fair value

of financial
The Group presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported grass in the balance sheet They are only offset and
reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event, the parties
also intend to settle on a net basis in all of the following circumstances:

« The normal course aof business
« The event of default
* The event of insalvency or bankruptey of the Company and/or its counterparties

Principles of Consalidation

(1) Subsidiaries

The Group controls an entity when the Company is exposed Lo, or has rights ta, variable returns from its involvemnent with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Company and ceases to be consolidated
when the Company loses control of the subsidiary. Fully consolidated means recagnilion of like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and expense. Therealter the partion
of net profit or loss and equity is segregated between the Company' share and share of non-controlling stakeholders

inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions belween Lhe Group companies are eliminated Unreallsed losses are also eliminated If there is a
profit on ultimate sale of goods When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to canform to the Group's accounting policies

(I} Investment in Associates/ JoInt Venture
Associates include all entities where the Company has the power to exercise a significant inlluence Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions af the investee but is not control or joint control of those policies

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parlies that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the arrangement

The Group's investment in associates/joint venture arc accounted using Lhe equily methad Under equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recorded at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognlse the Company' share of post-acquisition profit and lass, and the Company' share of other comprehensive income. Dlvidend recelved
from associates are recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investments. Unrealised gains on transactions between the Campany and its assaciate/joint
venture are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in these entities Unrealised losses are also eliminated if there is a profit on ultimate sale of goods.

At each reporting date, the Group determines whelher there is objective evidence Lhat the investment in the associale/joint venture is impaired. If there is such evidence, the
carrying amount is tested for impairment by comparing its recoverable amount {higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount and
impairment, if any, is recagnised as ‘Share of profit/{loss) in Associates/joint venture in the consolidated statement of profit and loss

iii) The consolidated financial statements include cesults of Lhe following subsidiaries and associate of Lhe Holding Company, consalidated in accardance with Ind AS 110
‘Consolidated Financlal Statements’

Name of the Company \Country of Propartion of swnership as at C as
|Incapo fis at Mireh 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Appnit Technologies Private Limited i Indwr | 94 78% 94 08t Suisiiary
DMI Capital Private Limited India ! 100 00% 100 00% Subsidiary
DMI Management Private Limited {upto 1 Nov 2023} India 0.00% 1N 0% Subsid iy
OMI Alternatives Private Limited {upto 25 Sep 2023} ____India 0.00% 49 0% Associate
Amoverse DM Private Limited {w e f 05 luly 2023) indis | A9 0% 0.00% loint uentire
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Summary of material accounting policies

Use of and

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformly with the Ind AS requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosure and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting year
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions Lo accounling eslimates are recognized in the year in which the estimates are revised
Although these estimates are based on the managemenl’s best knowledge of Current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and eslimates could result in
the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future years

in particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the
amounts recognized in Lhe {inancial statements is included in the following notes:

b Business Model Assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assots depends on the results of the Solely Payments of Principle and Interest {'SPPI') and the business model test. The
Group delermines the business model at a level thal reflects how Group's financial assels are managed together to achieve a particular business oblective. This
assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and thelr performance measured, the risks that
affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are evaluated The Group manitors financial assets measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income that are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether
the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held Monitaring is part of the Group's continuous assessment of whether the
business model for which the remaining financial assets are held conlinues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business
madel and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets

{l.  Impalrment of fInancial assets
Judgement is required by management in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining an impairment allowance for loans and
advances In estimating these cash flows, the Group makes judgments about the borrower's financial situation These estimates are based on assurnptions about a
number of factors such as credit quality, level of arrears ete and actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to the impairment allowance

iil, Share:based payments
Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent on the terms and
conditions of the grant. This estimale also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the share optian,
volatility and dividend vield and making assumptions about them

. Falr valus of financial

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be recelved to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction In the principle {or most
advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i e the exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly abservable or estimated
using another valuation technique When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted
prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow (“DCF”) model The inputs to these models are taken
from observable markels where possible, bul where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values, Judgements include considerations
of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments

W, Effective Interest Rate ('EIR') methad
The Group's EIR methodology, recognises interest income / expense using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the
expected behavioral life of loans given / taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages and other characteristics of the product
life eycle {including prepayments and penally interest and charges),

This estimation, by nature, requires an clement of judgement regarding the expected behavior and life-cycle of the instruments, as well expected changes ta Indla’s base
rate and other fee income/expense that are integral parts of the instrument

£

Defined emplayee benefit assets and liabilities

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment benelits and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the
discount rate, luture salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valualion and its long-term nature, a defined benelfit obligation Is
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-
term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to immaterial risk
of changes in value In the bafance sheet, any bank overdrafts, if applicable, are included as a component of borrowings.

Revenue recognition

I. Interest income
Interest income is recorded using the elfective interest rate ('EIR') method far all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, debt instruments measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income ('FVOCI') and debt instruments designated at fair value through profit and loss {'FVPTL')

The EIR {and therefore, the amortised cast af the assets) is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter year, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. The calculation of the effective Interest rate takes into
account all contractual terms of the financial instrument {for example, prepayment options}) and includes transaction costs and fees that are an Integral part of the
contract but not future credit losses. Transaction costs include incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of financial asset

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial assel are revised for reasons other than credit risk, the adjustment is recorded as a positive or negative
adjustment to the carrying amounl of the assel in the balance sheet with an increase or reduclion in interest income. The adjustment is subsequently amortised through
Interest income in the Statement of profit and loss

The Group calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets, other than credit-impaired assets under stage 3 When a
financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is, therefare, regarded as ‘Stage 3', the Group calculates the interest to the extant recoverable If the financial assets cures
and is no longer credil-impaired, the Group reverts Lo calculating inlerest income

ii.  Income other than Interest
Revenue {ather than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments are applicable) is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable Ind
AS 115 - "Revenue from contracls with customers” outhnes a single comprehensive model of accounting for revenue arising from cantracts with customers and
supersedes currenl revenue recognition guidance found within Ind ASs
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A, Fee and commission income
All other financlal charges such as cheque return charges, legal charges, collection charges etc are recognized on receipt basis These charges are treated to accrue on
realization, due the uncertainty of their realization

B. Net gain/loss on fair value changes
Any differences between the fair values of linancial assets classilied as fair value through the profit or loss, held by the Group on the balance sheet date is recognised as
an unrealised gain/loss. In cases there is a net gain in the aggregate,ihe same is recognised in “Net gains on fair value changes” under Revenuc from operations and if
there is a net [oss the same is disclosed under “Expenses” in the statement of profil and loss,

C. Other Income
Income on units of mutual funds is recognized on receipt basis as and when redeemed in cash based on the NAV of redemption date The Group also recognises gain on
fair value change of mutual fund measured at FVTPL Ali Other income is rocognized on accrual basis of accounting principle.

D. Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognized when the Group's right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend

Properly, plant and equlpment

Property, plant and equipment are staled al acquisition cost (including incidental expenses directly attributable Lo bringing the assel to its warking condition for its intended
use) less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price, non-refundable taxes or levies, borrowing costs if capltalization criteria
are met and any attributable cast of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Subsequent expenditure related to PPE is capitalized only when it is
probable that future ecanomic benefits associated with these will flow to the Group and the cost of item can be measured reliably Other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed off as and when incurred

An item of property, plant and equipment and any material part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal ar when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset {calculated as the difference between the net dispasal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the statement of prafit and loss when the asset is derecognised

Intangible Assets

{i) Intangible Assels are recognized only if it is probable thal the future economic benefils that are altributable to assets will flaw to Lhe enterprise and the cost of Lthe assets
can be measured reliably. Computer soltware which is not an integral part of the related hardware is classified as an intangible asset Intangible assets are measured and
recorded at cost and carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life as determined by management The amortization period and the amortization
method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expecled uselul life of the assel is materially different (rom previous estimates, the amarlization period is
changed accordingly.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized

(1) Goodwill

Goodwill arising on a business combination represents the excess of the fair value of consideration over the identifiable net asset acquired. Fair value of consideration
represents the aggregate of the consideration transferred, a reliable estimate of contingent consideration payable, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree on the acquisition date. Net assets acquired represents the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to each of the Cash generating units {CGUs), or groups of CGUs, that is
expected to benefit from the acquisition itself or from the synergies of the combination or both Each unit or group of units to which the goadwill is allocated represents the
lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored tor internal management purposes

Goodwill is not amortised but is tested for impairmenl. Goodwill impairment reviews are generally undertaken annually. The carrying value of the CGU containing the
goadwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in usc and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment s recognised immediately as an
expense and is nat subseguently reversed unless the CGU is classified as “Asset held for sale” and there is evidence of reversal Goodwill is subsequently measured at cost less
amounts provided for impairment

Depreclation and amortlzation

Deprectation

Deprecialion on property, plant and equipmenl's is calculated on wrilten down value (WDV) basis Depreciation is provided based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in
Schedule It to the Companies Act, 2013 as under:

Particulars Useful Life {years)
Furniture and Fixtures 10
Vehicle 8
Computer, printers 36
Office Equipment s

Leasehold improvements and allied oifice equipment’s are amortized on a straight-line basis aver useful fife estimated by management,
Salvage Value of the asscts has been taken five percent of Original Cost {except intangible assets) as prescribed in Schedule 11
Depreciation on assets acquired/ sold during the period is recognized on a pro-rata basis to the statement of prafit and lass from/ upto the date of acquisition/ sale

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial period end and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate

Amortization

The Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life. The Group estimates that useful life of an intangible asset will not exceed
five years from the date when the asset is available for usc. If the persuasive evidence exists to the effect that useful life of an intangible asset exceeds five years, the Group
amortizes the intangible asset over the best estimate of its useful life

Leases

i, Group as a lessee:

The Group's lease assel classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings: The Group assesses whether a conlract contains a lease, at inception of a contract, A
contract is, or cantains, a lease if the cantract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a perlod of time in exchange for conslderation To assess
whether a contract canveys the right to contral the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses whelher:
* The contract involves the use of an identified asset
¢ The Group has substantially all the cconomic benefils from use of the asset through the period of the tease and
« The Group has the right to direcl the use of the asset

ii.  Measurement and recognition:

At lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the balance sheet. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is
made up of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the GRoup, an eslimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at
the end of the lease, and any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement date {net of any incentives received)

The Group depreciates the right-of- assels on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of use
asset or the end of the lease term The Group also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist At the commencement date, the Group
measures Lhe lease liability at the present value of the lease payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily
available or the Group's incremental borrowing rate
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Subsequent ta initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest It is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or
modilication, or if there are changes in in-substance fixed payments. When the lease liability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of use
asset, or profit and loss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced to zero

Short term Lease;
The Group has clecled not to recognise right ol use assel and lease liabililies for shorl term leases of property Lhat has lease term of less than 12 months. The Group
recognises lease payment associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over lease term

iil.  Group as a lessor:
As a lessor the Group classifies its leases as either operating or finance leases. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of the underlying asset, and classifted as an operating lease If it does not

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation {legal or constructive} as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation The expense relating to any provision is
presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is
used, the increasc in the provision due Lo the passage of time is recognised as a linance cost,

Contingent liabilities and assets

i, Contingent liabilities

The Group does not recognize a contingent liabllity but discloses its existence in the financial statements Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:

* Apresent obligation arising from past events, when it is not probahle that an outflow of resources will not be required to settle the obligation
= A present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible
* A possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote
Contingent liabilities are reviewed at each balance sheet date
il.  Contingent assets
Contingenl assets are not recognised A contingent asset is disclosed, as required by Ind AS 37, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable

Employee benefits

I, Defined contribution plan
The Group pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local regulations. The Group has na further payment obligations once the
conlributions have been paid The contributions are accounted for as defined conlribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense
when they are due If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit
payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services
received befare the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent thal the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment
or a cash refund

ii.  Defined benefit plan
The plan pravides lor lump sum payments to employees upon death while in employment or on separation from employment after serving for the stipulated years
mentioned under 'The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972", Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation at each Balance Sheet date using
the Projected Unit Credit Methad,
Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and lasses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefil liability
and the return on plan assets {excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OClin the year in which they occur ements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent years

Pasl service costs are recognised in statement of prolil or loss on Lhe earlier of: The dale of the plan amendment or curtailment, and the date that Lhe Group recognlses
related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group recagnises the followlng changes in the net defined benefit
abligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss: Service casts comprising current service casts, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-
routine settlements; and Net interest expense or income

iii. Compensated absences
Entitlements to annual leave are recognized when they accrue ta the employees Leave entittements can be avaited while in service of employment subject to restriction
on the maximum number of accumulations The Group determines the liabilily for such accumulated leave entitlements on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out by
an independent actuary at the Year end

Taxes

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax, The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the taxable income of the current period based on the
applicable income tax rates adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temparary differences and unused tax losses

Current tax

Current tax is measured at the amount cxpected te be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India and 1ax laws prevailing in the
respective tax jurisdictions where the Group operates The tax rates and tax lows used to compute lhe amaunt are thase that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the statement of profit and loss

Deferred tax

Deferred taxes reflect the impact of timing differences between taxable income and accounting income originating during the current year and reversal of timing differences
for the earlier years Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred income tax relating to
items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the statement of profit and loss

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable timing dilferences Delerred tax assets are recognized for deductible timing differences only to the extent that there is
reasonable certainly thal sulficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred lax assets can be realized.

At each reparting date, the Group re-assesses unrecognized deferred tax assets It recognizes unrecognized deferred tax asset to the extent that it has become reasonably
certain, as the case may be, that sufiicient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date The Group writes-down the carrying amount of deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no
longer reasonably certain, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which deferred tax asset can be realized. Any such write-down is reversed to the
cxlent that it becomes reasonably certain, as the case may be, that sufficient fulure taxable income will be available

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax labilities are offset, if a legally enfarceable right exists ta set-off current tax assels against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation aulhority.

Earning per share

Basic carnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Group {after deducting preference dividends and attributable
taxes) by the weighled average number of equity shares oulslanding during the period

Partly paid equity shares are treated as 3 fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during
the reporting period The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as shared based payments, bonus issue, bonus
element in a rights issue, share spht, and reverse share split {consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding
change in resources

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net prolil or loss for the period altributable o equily shareholders of the Group and the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares

Financial instruments
A financial instrument Is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liabilily or equity instrument of another entity.

i.  Financial Assets




DM Finance Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

tnitlal recognition and measurement
The financlal asset is held within a business model with the objective Lo collect cantractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset glve rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are salely payments of principal and interest {SPPI) an the principal amount outstanding

Financial assets, with the exception of loans and advances to customers, are initially recognised on the trade date, i.e,, the date that the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument, Loans and advances lo customers are recognised when funds are disbursed The classification of financial instruments at initial
recognition depends on their purpose and characteristics and the management's intention when acquiring them

Accordingly, the Group measures bank balances, loans and advances, trade receivables and ather financial instruments at amortised cost

Classification and subsequent measurement

The financial asset at amortised cost subsequently measured at amortised cost using elfective interest method. The amoartised cost is reduced by impairment losses
Interest income, foreign exchange gain and losses and impairment are recognised in statement of profit and loss. Any gain and loss on derecognition is recognised in
statement of profit and loss.

For the purpose of subsequent measurement , financial assets are classified in three categories
* Debt instrument at amortised cost

 Debt instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

¢ Debt instrument and equity instruments al fair value through profit or loss(FVTPL)

Debt Instruments at amartlsed costs

A debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the follawing conditions are met:

« The asset is held within a business madel whase objective is ta hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

* Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest {SPPI) an the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate {EIR) method less impairment, Amortlsed
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR The EIR amortisation is included in
interest income in the statement of profit or loss The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Debt Instruments at FVTOCI

A “debt instrument’ is classified as at the F'VTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

* The objective of the business model is achicved both by collecting contractual cash flows and sclling the financial assets, and

® The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI categary are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the
other comprehensive income {OCI). However, the Group recognizes Interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the profit and
loss On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from the equity ta P&L Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt
instrument is reported as inlerest income using Lthe EIR melhod

Debt Instruments at FYTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debl instruments Any debt instrumenl, which does not meel the criteria for categorizalion as al amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is
classificd as at FVTPL

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amorlized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is
allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’), Debt instruments included within the
FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in Lhe P&L

Business model: The business model reflects how the Group manages the assets in order ta generate cash flows. That is, where the Group's objective is solely to collect
the contractual cash Mlows from the assets, the same is measured at amortized cost or where the Group's objective is to callect both the cantractual cash flows and cash
flows arising from the sale of assets, the same is measured al fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI). IT neither of these is applicable {e.g. financial
assets are held for trading purposes), then the financial assets are classified as part of ‘other’ business model and measured at FVTPL

SPPI: Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows (i.e. measured at amartized cost), the Group assesses whether the financial
instruments’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest {the 'SPP| test’) In making this assessment, the Group considers whether the contractual
cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement i ¢ interest includes only consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending risks and
a prafit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or volatilily that are inconsistent with a baslc
tending arrangement, the related financial assel is classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss The amortized cost, as mentloned above, is computed
using the effective interest rate method

The losses arising fram impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss

F. Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the assct expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised barrawing for the proceeds received

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the assct's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would
have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety {e g when the Group retains an option to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Group allacates the
previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the
basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised
and the sum of the consideration received for the parl no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in olher
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues ta be recognised and the part that is no
longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts




DMI Finance Prlvate Limited
Notes to the ¢ lidated fi ial st for the year ended March 31, 2024

Equity Investments and Mutual funds

All equily investments in scope ol Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equily instruments which are held for trading are classilied as held al FVTPL. For all other equity
instruments, the Group may make an irrevacable election to present in other comprchensive income subsequent changes in the fair value The Group makes such
election on an instrument-by- instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FYTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is
no recycling of the amounts from OCI to Statement of profit and loss, even an sale of investment However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
equity,

Financial Liabllities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified and measured at amortised cost oc FYTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for trading or it is
designated as on initial recognition. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs Other financial liabilities arc subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense are
recognlsed in Statement of profit and loss Any gain ar loss on derecognition 1s also recognised in Statement of profit and loss

The Group’s financial liabilities include loans, debentures and borrowings including bank overdrafts and trade & other payables

Loans, Debenture and borrowlings

After inilial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or Ioss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process,

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR The EIR amortisation is
inctuded as finance costs in the Statement of profit and lass

Financlal liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amartised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods The
carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subscquently measured at amortised cast are determined based on the effective interest method, Interest expense that
is not capitalised as part of cosls of an asset is included in Lhe ‘Finance casts' line ilem

The effective interest method Is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allacating interest expense over the relevant period The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liahility, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to
the net carrying amount on initial recognition

Financlal guarantee contracts
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to relmburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtar
fails to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument

Financial guarantee contracts 1ssued by the Group are initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher
of:

the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 10%; and
the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised

Derecognition of financtal llabllitles

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired, An exchange belween with a lender
of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishmenl of the original financial llability and the recognlition of a new financial
liability, Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability {whether or not altributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is
accounted for as an extinguishment of the ariginal financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability The dilference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in prolit or loss

Reclassification of financlal assets and liabilities

The Group doesn’t reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional circumstances in which the Group acquires, disposes
of, or terminates a business line. Financial liabilities are never reclassified

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid ta transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement

date. The fair value measurement is based on Ihe presumption Lhat Lhe transaction Lo sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageaus market far the asset or liability The principai or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Group

The fair valuc of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions thal market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming thal market
participants act in their ecanomic best interest

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate ecanomic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumslances and for which sufficient data are avallable to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs

All assets and liabilitics for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level inpul thal is material to the fair value measurementl as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the towest level input that is material to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly abservable.

Level 3 — Valuation Lechniques for which the lowest level input thal is malerial to (he fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in
the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation {based on the lowest level input that is material to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting year
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

I. Impalrment of financial assets

I: Overview of the impairment princlples {'ECL')
In accordance with ind AS 109, the Group is required lo measure expected credit losses on its financial instruments designated at amortized cost and fair value through
other comprehensive income  Accordingly, the Group is required to determine lifetime losses on financial instruments where credit risk has increased materially since Its
origination For other instruments, the Group is required to recognize credit losses over next 12 month period The Group has an option to determine such losses on
individual basis or collectively depending upon the nature of underlying portfolio The Group has a process to assess credit risk of all exposures at each year end as
follows:

Stage |

These represent exposures where there has not been a material increase in credit risk since initial recognition or that has low credit risk at the reporting date. The Group
has assessed that alt standard exposures (i.c. expoasures with no overdues) and cxposure upto 30 day overdues fall under this calegory. In accordance with Ind AS 109,
the Group measures ECL on such assets over next 12 months

Stage Il

Financial instruments that have had a material increase in credit risk since initial recognition arc classified under lhis stage Based on empirical evidence, malerial
increase in credit risk is witnessed after the overdues on an exposure exceed for a period more than 30 days Accordingly, the Group classifies all exposures with
overdues exceeding 30 days at each reporting date under this Stage The Group measures lifetime ECL on stage |1 loans

Stage Ill

All exposures having overdue balances for a period exceeding 90 days are considered to be defaults and are classified under this stage Accordingly, the Group measures
lifetime losses on such exposure Interest revenue on such contracts is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortized cost {net of impairment
allowance) instead of the gross carrying amount The method is similar to Stage Il assets, with the probability of default set at 100%.

When estimating ECL on a collective basis for a group of similar assets, the Group applies the same principles for assessing whether there has been a material increase in
credit risk since initial recognition

Ii. The calculation of ECLs
The mechanics of the ECL calculation involve the use of following key etements:
Probabillty of default {PD) - The probability of default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon {12-month or lifetime, depending upon the
stage of the asset) PD estimation is done based on historical internal data available with the Group
Exposure at default (EAD) - It represents an estimate of the exposure of the Group at a future date alter cansidering repayments by the counterparty belore the default
cvent occurs. The outstanding balance as at reparting datc is considered as EAD by the Group Considering the PD determined above factors in amount at default, there
is no separate requiremenl to cstimate EAD.
Loss given default (LGD) - It represents an estimate of the loss expected to be incurred when the event of defaull occurs The Group uses historical loss data/external
agency LGD for identified pools for the purpase of calculating LGD

Definition of Default and cure
The Graup considers a financial instrument as defaulted and classifies it as Stage NI {credit-impaired) for ECL eal typically when the borrower becomes 90 days
past due on contractual payments The Group may also classify a Joan in Stage 11l it there is material deterioration in the financial condition of the borrower or an
assessment that adverse market conditions may have a disproportionately detrimental cffect on the loan repayment. Thus, as a part of the qualitative assessment of
whether an instrument is in default, the Group also considers a variety of instances that may indicate delay in or non-repayment of the loan. When such events occur,
the Group carefully considers whether the event should result in treating the borrower as defaulted and therefore assessed as Stage Il for ECL calculations or whether

Stage Il i1s appropriate

Classification of accounts into Stage |1 is done when there is a material increase in credit risk since initial recagnition, typically when contractual repayments are more
than 30 days past due.

Itis the Group’s policy to consider a financial instrument as ‘cured’ and therelore re-classified out of Stage il or Stage (I when none of the default criteria which resulted
in their downgrade are present

lv, Forward looking information
While estimating the expected credit losses, the Group reviews macro-economic developments occurring in the economy and market it operates in On a periodic basis,
the Group analyses if there is any relationship between key economic trends like GDP, Unemployment rates, Benchmark rates set by the Reserve Bank of India, inflation
ete. with the estimate of PD, LGD determined by the Group based on its internal data. While the internal estimates of PD, LGD rates by the Group may not be always
reflective of such relationships, temporary overlays are embedded in the methodology to reflecl such macro-ecanomic trends reasonably.

v, Write-offs
Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Group has no reasonable expectation of recovery. If the amount to be written off is
greater than the accumulated loss allowance, the difference recorded as an expense in the period of write off Any subsequent recoveries are credited to impairment on
financial instrument on statement of profit and loss

vl.Collateral repossessed
The Group's policy is to sell r assets. Naon-i fal asscls r
outstanding whichever is less at repossession date

are transferred to asset held for sale at fair value less cost to sell or principal

n) Share based payments
Equity-settled share based payments to employees and others provlding similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity settled share based payments is expensed on a straight line basis over the vesting year, based on the Group's
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity At the end of each reporting year, the Group revises its estimate of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest, The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss such that the
cumulative expenses reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the Share Based Payments Reserve

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share

o) Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in 3 manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The Group’s primary business segments
are reflected based on the principal business carried out, i e lending actwilies as Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) regulated by the Reserve Bank of India ('RBI'). The
risk and returns of the business of the Group is not associated with geographical segmentation, hence there is no secondary segment

Interest in Subsidlarles, assoclate and jolnt venture entities

Investment in subsidiaries and associate entitics are carcied at cost less accumulated impairment lasses, if any. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount
of the investment is assessed and written down value immediately Lo its recaverable amount. On disposal of investment in subsidiaries or the loss of material influence over
jointly cantrolled entities, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognised in the statement of profit and loss

-

Recent pronauncemints

Ministry of Corporate Affairs {“MCA") notifies new slandards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time
to time- For the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has aot notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Group




DMI Finance Private Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024
(All Amount in Rs. In miltions, unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS
Financlal assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables
Loans
Investments
Other financial assets
Total financlal assets

Nen-financial assets
Current tax assets (net)
Deferred tax assets (net)
Property, plant and equipment
Capital work in progress
Goodwill
Intangible assets under development
Right of use assets
Other intangible assets
Other non-financial assets
Total nen-financial assets

Assets held for sale

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY.

LIABILITIES
Financlal liabilities
Payables
A) Trade payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises

(i) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and

small enterprises
B) Other payables

(i) total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises

(i1} total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and

small enterprises
Debt securities
Borrowings {other than debt securities)
Lease liabilities
Other financlal liabilities
Total financlal liabilities

Non financial liabllities
Provisions
Other non-financial liabilities
Total non-financlal liabilities

EQUITY

Equity share capital

Other equity

Equity attributable to equity shareholders of the company
Non Controlling Interest

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Notes As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
4 10,580,18 5,699.76
5 1,162.59 57025
153 68.86 312.08
7 1,18,439.86 67,344 47
8 5,712.82 8,136.80
| 1,169.80 1,090.00
1,37,134.21 83,153.37
10 148.20 198.76
11 2,158.37 1,219.49
12 14276 143.00
13(a) 4.68 3

14 253.53 253.53
13 (b) 2,54 8.78
15 219.48 196.35
16 30.97 21.66
17 316.58 249.76
3,277.11 2,291.33
18 75.00 75.00
1,40,486.32 85,519.70

19 (a)
2533 8.97
1,796.58 1,165.75

19(b)
850,37 525.06
20 8,862.16 16,837.91
21 59,510.11 23,889.34
22 265.29 242.29
23 488.74 283.98
71,798.58 42,953.30
24 139.44 102.31
25 439 65 261.79
579.09 364.10
26 7,424.87 6,567.75
27 60,660.68 35,607.90
68,085.55 42,175.65
28 23.10 26.65
1,40,486.32 85,519.70

See accompanying notes forming part of the consolidated financial statement
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DM! Finance Private Limited

Consolidated Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

{AllAmount in Rs. in milllons, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Not:
otes March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Revenue from operatlons
Interest income 29 25,302.45 15,970.05
Dividend income 29A - 3.34
Fees and commission income 30 754.28 265.41
Net gain on fair value changes 31 487.85 198.06
Total revenue from operatlons 26,544.58 16,437.86
Other income 32 195.59 182.56
Total Income 26,740.17 16,620.42
Expenses
Finance costs 33 4,867.53 3,018.66
Fees and commission expense 34 1,758.82 1,357.13
Impairment on financial instruments 35 9,148.66 4,012,20
Employee benelits expense 36 1,696.66 1,281.61
Depreciation, amortization and impairment 37 117.44 108.91
Other expenses 38 3,832.56 2,516.85
Total expenses 21,421.67 12,295.46
Proflt before tax 5,318.50 4,324.96
Tax expense/ {credit):
(1) Current tax 49 2,226.24 1,523.02
(2) Delerred tax 49 {939.20) (397.92]
Income tax expense 1,287.04 1,125.10
Net profit tor the year 4,031.46 3,199.86
Transfer to Non Controlling Interest = -
Add: Share of (Loss) of assoclate (20.99) {54.67)
Add: Share of (Loss) of Joint venture (36.45) -
Net Profit after Taxes and share of {Loss) of assoclate 3,974.02 3,145.19
Other comprehenslve Income

a) Items that will not be reclasslfled to proflt or loss
(i) Re-measurement gains on gratuity 1.06 4.93
(i) Net gain/loss on fair value of equity instruments through other 023 227.72
comprehensive income
Income tax relating to above {0.32) {58.56)
Subtotal [a) 097 174.09

b) Items that will be reclassifled to profit or lass
(i) Gain/{loss) on Fair Value changes - -
Income tax relating to above item -
Subtotal {b) =
Other comprehenslve Income {a+h), net of tax 0.97 174.09
Total comprehenslive Income far the year, net of tax 3,974.99 3,319.28
Profit for the year attibutable to

- Owners of the Company 3,977.57 3,147.67

- Non Controlling Interest {3.55) (2.48)
Other comprehensive Income for the year attibutable to

- Owners of the Company 0.97 174.03

- Non Controtling Interest ¥ -
Total comprehenslve Income for the year attibutable to

- Owners of the Company 3,978.54 3,321.76

- Non Controlling Interest {3.55) (2.48)
Earnings per equity share (face value of Rs. 10 per share) 39

Basic (Rs.) 5.45 487

Diluted {Rs.) 539 4.80

See accompanying notes forming part of the consolidated financial statement
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Chartered Accountants

Manlsh Surana

Partner
Membership No. 503812

For and on behalf of the Board of DIrectors of
DMI Finance Private Limited
CIN: U64990DL2008PTC 182749

Shi
(1. Managing Difector)
BIN: 012623450 1

Place: New York
Date: Mg 16 20174 = o

FRAN

tnder Pal SingliBhasin
{Interim Chief FInanclal Officer}

Place: New Dethi
Date: May 16,2024

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 16,2024

rafa chjn ya Singh
anaging Direclor)
102601179

:&] New Delhi
& May 16,2024




DMI Finance Private Limited
Express Building, 3rd Floor, Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg, New Delhl-110002
CIN - U64930DL2008PTC182749
St of Audited C d Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024
{AU Amount in Rs. In milllons, unless otherwlse stated)

Forthe yearended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A Cash flaw from operating acllvities:
Profit before tax 5,318.50 4,324.96
AdJustments for
Depreciation and amortisation 11744 10891
Nel gain on fair value changes (487.85) (199.06)
[ on financial 10,523 23 4,801.60
Interest expense for leasing arrangements 2373 26.33
Effective interest rale adj| for financial i (6,295 24) {4,554.41}
Asset held for sale writlen off . 6917
Dlvidend income + (334)
Liabilites no longer required written back {139 20) -
Gratuily and compensalion absences 39.08 2777
Interestincome deposits with bank (57 23) (38.65)
Share of loss of associate/{oint venture (57 44) (54.67)
Employee slock option/share warrant expense 345 39 160.41
Operating profit before working capltal changes 9,330.41 4,669.02
{Increase) in financial and other assets (55,526 58) (20,842 43)
Increase in financial and other liabilities 1,177.26 649 00
Decrease in non financial assets {66 82) {45 14)
Increase In non financial liabilities 176 87 15115
Total of changes In working capital {54,239.17) {20,087.42)
Direct taxes paid {nel of refunds) 12,175 69) {1,425 84)
Net cash flow generated from / {used In) operating activitles (A} (47,084.45) {16,844.05)
B Cash flow from Investing activities:
Inflow (outflow) on account of
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment (70.16) {74.14)
capitat k-in-progress)/i i
assels
Purchase of Investment (78,645.31) (76,951.65)
Salte of Investment 82,270.97 79,927.20
Investments
Dividend income - 334
Movement of fixed deposits {net) (592 34) (275.59)
Interest Income deposits with bank 4576 38.65
Net cash flow trom / {used In} Investing actlvities (B) 3,008.92 2,667.81
C Cash flow from flnancing activitles:
Proceed from issue of equily shates (including share premium) 21,585.97 497
Receipt of upiront money on share warrant = 022
Proceeds from borrowings
Proceeds from borrowings {other than debt securities) 62,808 56 31,517.18
Repayment of borrowings (olher than debt securities) (27,369 22) (16,686 20)
Proceeds from debt securilies 11,888 82 1,500 00
Repayment of debt securitles (19,879 53) {3,219.16)
Lease paymenls {78.65) {70.67)
Net cash flow generated from financing activities (C) 48,955,985 13,046.35
Net Increase in cash and cash equivalenls (A+B+C) 4,880.42 {1,129.88)
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 5,699.76 6,829.64
Cash and cash equlvalents at the end of the year 10,580.18 5,699.76
Nojes;

1) Companents of cash and cash equivalents As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31,2023

Cash on hand 008 0.10
Batance with banks
In current accounts and overdraft accounts 10,080 09 5,699.66
deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months 50000 =
Total cash and cash equivalents 10,580.18 5,699.76

2) Stalement of Cash Flows has been prepaled under indirect method as set out in the IND AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”
3) Fordisclosure of investing and financing actwities that do nol tequire the use of cash and cash equivalents, refer note 47.

See accompanying noles farming pait of the consolidated financial statement

In terms of our reparl altached

For S.N, Dhawan & CO LLP For and on behall of the Board of Directors of
Firm Registralion No- 000050N/N500045 DMI Finance Privale Limited
Chartered Accountanls CIN: UB4Fnil 200npPTC 183749 L

Marnie

Manish Surana
Partner
Membership No. 60321

Fatinder Pal Singh Bhasin
{Interim Chief Financlal Offica}

Place: Gurugram Place: New Delhi
Date: May 16,2024 Date: May 16,2024
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DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(All Amount in Rs. in millions, unless otherwise stated}

4 Cash and cash equivalents

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Cash on hand 0.09 0.10
Balance with banks
- balance in current accounts and overdraft accounts* 10,080.09 5,699.66
Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months 500.00 -
10,580.18 5,699.76

* Includes Escrow account balance of Rs. 250.28 millions (previous year: Rs. 15,82 millions) which is maintained
as per guidelines of Reserve Bank of India for operating Semi closed Prepaid Payment Instrument and can be
used onlv for the soecified ourooses

5 Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents

Deposit with original maturity of more than 3 months* 1,162.59 570.25
1,162.59 570.25

* Deposits being lien marked against corporate credit cards, overdraft, cash credits, WCDL accounts and
pledged for PTC borrowings as external credit enhancement

6 Trade receivables

Considered good - Unsecured 68.86 312.08
Considered good - Secured =
Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - -
Receivables — credit impaired

68.86 312.09
Less: Impairment loss allowance - -
Total 68.86 312.09

Trade receivables from related parties {see note 42)
Trade receivables ageing schedule

As at 31 March 2024

lessthan6 6 months- 1
Particulars an onths 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 year Total
Months year

Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good 65.00 . - - 3.86 68.86
Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in -
credit risk - =

Undisputed Trade receivable —~ credit impaired - . - - - -
Disputed Trade receivables - considered good . o 3 ; = -
Disputed Trade receivables — which have significant increase in -
credit risk . 5 = :

Disputed Trade receivables ~ credit impaired 3 . -

65.00 = = = 3.86 68.86

As at 31 March 2023

less th 6 months- 1
Particulars ess than 6 mo 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 year Total
Months year

Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered good 308.23 - - 3.86 312.09
Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in -
credit risk - = - -

Undisputed Trade receivable — credit impaired - . < - - -
Disputed Trade receivables - considered good = 3 - -
Disputed Trade receivables — which have significant increase in

credit risk - ad = =
Disputed Trade receivables - credit impaired = . P Z -

308.23 - = - 3.86 312.09

Note: The ageing of trade receivables has been determined from the transaction date

N
s
““""‘-—_



DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
{All Amount in Rs. in millions, unless otherwise stated)

7 Lloans
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Amortised cost Fair value Total Amortised cost Fair value Total
through other through other
comprehensive comprehensive
income income

{A) Term loans

Corporate loans* 5,392.93 104.87 5,497.80 12,054.20 137.80 12,192.00

Consumer loans 117,500.40 - 117,500.40 59,114.03 - 59,114.03
Total (A) Gross 122,893.33 104.87 122,998.20 71,168.23 137.80 71,306.03
Less: Impairment loss allowance 4,546.53 11.81 4,558.34 3,945.18 16.38 3,961.56
Total (A) Net 118,346.80 93.06 118,439.86 67,223.05 121.42 67,344.47
(B)
Secured by tangible assets and intangible assets 35,820,07 104.87 35,924.94 11,990.70 137.80 12,128.50
Unsecured 87,073.26 - 87,073.26 59,177.53 - 59,177.53
Total (B} Gross 122,893.33 104.87 122,998.20 71,168.23 137.80 71,306.03
Less: Impairment loss allowance 4,546,53 11.81 4,558.34 3,945.18 16.38 3,961.56
Total (B) Net 118,346.80 93.06 118,439.86 67,223.05 121.42 67,344.47
(C) Sector
Public sector . = . - . -
Others 122,893.33 104.87 122,998.20 71,168.23 137.80 71,306.03
Total (C) Gross 122,893.33 104.87 122,998.20 71,168.23 137.80 71,306.03
Less: Impairment loss allowance 4,546.53 11.81 4,558.34 3,945.18 16.38 3,961.56
Total {C) Net 118,346.80 93.06 118,439.86 67,223.05 121.42 67,344.47
(D)
In India 122,893.33 104,87 122,998.20 71,168.23 137.80 71,306.03
Outside India - - = - =
Total (D) Gross 122,893.33 104.87 122,998.20 71,168.23 137.80 71,306.03
Less: Impairment loss allowance 4,546.53 11.81 4,558.34 3,945.18 16.38 3,961.56
Total (D) Net 118,346.80 93.06 118,439.86 67,223.05 121.42 67,344.47

*Corporate loan portfolio includes loan outstanding from employees of Nil (previous year: Rs, 0.32 millions)

Notes:
Loans are non-derivative financial assets which generate a fixed or variable interest income for the Holding Company. The carrying value may be affected by changes
in the credit risk of the counterparties.

Secured Loans granted by the Holding Company are secured by equitable mortgage/registered mortgage of the property and/or undertaking to create a security
and/or persanal guarantees and/or hypothecation of assets and/or receivables and/or pledge of shares/debenture units and other securities.

iii} Corporate loan portfolio includes non-convertible debentures of Rs. 1,085.87 millions (previous year: Rs. 2,338.58 millions)

iv) Details of loans given to key managerial personnel (KMP) are provided in Note 42. There is no outstanding balance as on March 31,2024 and March 31,2023.




DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(All Amount in Rs. in millions, unless otherwise stated)

7.1 Impairment for loans and ad to borrowers

Summary of loans by stage distribution is as follows:

¢ £ loans March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

orsumerioan Stage 1 Stage 2 Stoge 3 Total Stoge 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross carrying smount 114,11R 34 3,075.86 306.20 117,500.40 57.309.78 1,690.44 113.81 59,114.03
Loss! Impainmaent loss allowanes 1,795.57 1,628 45 2128 80 3,652.82 619,78 493 24 111.81 1,226.83
Nat carrying amount 112,322.77 1,447.41 77.40 113,847.58 56,690.00 1,187.20 - 57,887.20
Corporate loans March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023

P Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stagoe 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Grass canying amount 2,500.04 BEIBG 211290 5,497,840 8,167.13 1,7R4.28 2,240.59 12,192.00
Less: tmpairment loss allowanee 132 64 1138 66156 905.52 256,95 133845 1,139.32 2,73473
Net earrying amaunt 2136840 17250 1,451.34 4,592,728 7.910.17 445,83 110037 9,457.27
Summary of credit substitutes and compulsory convertible debentures by stage distribution is as follows:
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Credit substi d I ertible deb es

rect an y conv © Stoge 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Staga 3 Total
Gross carmying amount - 807.16 BO7.16 3.462.35 - 35184 3,814.34
Less: IulEnIrm:ﬂl loss allowance - - 40357 403.57 765.18 - 35199 1,117.17
Net carrylng amount - - 403.59 403,59 2,687.17 - < 2,687.17
An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount in relation to consumer and corporate lending (except credit substitutes and compulsory convertible debentures) Is, as follows:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Caonsumer loans
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

Gross carrying amount opening balance 57,309.78 1,690.44 113 81 59,114.03 32,855.594 931.47 69.45
New Assets originated, Netted off for repayments and loans 59,073 22 (654 92) (3193) 58,386.37 | 24,405 79 882,64 (3126)| 2525717
deracognised during the year
Transfers from Stage 1 (2A00.26) 219571 204 55 . (564,23 49151 72.72 -
Transfers from Stage 2 13086 {156 05] 2519 - 603.43 617.45) 14.02 -
Transfers from Stage 3 474 0.68 (5.42) 8.85 227 (11,12} .
Gross carrylng amount closing balance 114,118 34 3,075.86 306.20 117,500.40 57,308.78 1,690.44 113.81 59,114.03
< el March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

orporate loans Stago 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross carrying amount opening balance 8,167.13 1,784.28 2,240.59 12,192.00 15,050.82 192,95 774.83 16,048.60
New Assets originated, Netted off for repayments and Ioans
ABESCBiEAIERH AU gt i {4,349.74)(  (1,722.97) {621.49) (6,694.20) (3,714.63) (17.25) (124.72)|  (3,856.60)
Transfers from Stage 1 {1,316.35) 822 55 493 80 S 13,199 06]| 1,608 58 1,530.48 *
Transfers from Stage 2 i -
Transfers from Stage 3 - . . .
Gross carrying amount closing balance 2,501.04 BB3.86 2,112.90 5,497.80 8,167.13 1,784.28 2,240.59 12,192.00

An analysls of changes in the gross carrying amount of Investments in relation to Credit Substitutes and Compulsory Convertible Debentures Is, as follows:

credit sut and ) convertible del March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
v = Stage 1 Stoge 2 itage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Taotal
Gross carrylng amount opening balance 3,462.35 - 351.99 3,814.34 4,066.97 - 351.599 4,418.595

New Assets originated, Netted oif for repayments and loans
derecognised during the year
Transfers from Stage 1 {80716} - 807.16 - - - - =

Transfers from Stage 2 =
Transfers from Stage 3 ~

Gross carrying amount closing balance - L 807.16 807.16 3,462.35 . 351.99 3,814.34

{2,655.19) - (351.99) {3,007.18] (604.62) : - (604.62)
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ed Financial Stat

Notes to C:
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{All Amount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated}

An analysis of changes in the ECL allowances in relation to consumner and corporate lending {except Credit Substitutes and Compulsory Convertible Debentures) is, as follows:

Consumer loans* March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stoge 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Expected credit loss p g balance 619.78 493.24 113.81 1,726.83 284.20 128.76 69.45 5B2.41
Change in ECL due to change in ECL model rate 27239 393.19 [28.77) 636,81 124.06 78.09 - 202.15
N A i ted, Netted off F d |
ew Assets orlginated, Netted off for repayments and loans 2,18847|  (37180) f27:49) 1,789.18 421.02 62.86 {4161) 44227
derecognised/write offs during the year
from Stage | {1,287.14) 1,134.29 15285 [216.1;] 143,42 T -
Transfers from Stage 2 201 {20.83) 18.82 6.53 (20.55) 14.02
Transfers from Stage 3 007 0.35 (043} - 010 0.66 {0,761 -
Expected credit loss allowance closing balance 1,795,57 1,628.45 228.80 3.652.82 619,78 493.24 113.81 1,226.83
Corporate loans ** March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
e Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
 credit foss all opening balance 256.96 1,338.45 1,139.32 2,734.73 1,855.56 25.29 641.05 2,521.90
Change in ECL due to change in ECL madel rate 60.22 16497 18 20 155.39 9321 14 26 107.47
igi d off
New Assfets orlglnaked, Nt.atle off for repayments and loans (3763) (1,336 69) (610.28) {1,984,60) 160.89 (13 35) {4217) 105.37
derecognised/write offs during the year
Transfers from Stage 1 {146.91) 92.59 54.3% = [1,852.69] 1,32651 526.18 -
Translers from Stage 2 - - - . -
Transfers from Stage 3 -
Expected credit loss allowance closing balance 132.64 111.32 661.56 905.52 256.96 1,338.45 1,139.32 2,734.73
An analysis of changes in the ECL allowances of Investment in relation to Credit Substitutes and Compulsory Convertible Debentures (refer note 8) is, as follows:
4
Credit Substitutes ** March 31, 202 Mareh 31, 2023
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Expected credit loss all e opening balance 765,18 - 351.89 1,117.17 1,193.33 - 319,85 1,513,18
Change in ECL due to change in ECL model rate - - - 273.38 - 3113 305.51
New A Jrag P (T d lan
.i.w ssetd orginated, Netted off for repayments an ang (361.61) (351.99) (713.60) (701.53) 3 - (701.53)
direcognisedfwrite offs during the yoar
Transfers rom Stage 1 (03 57) a03.57 - -
Translers Irom Stage 2 =
Transters from Stage 2 -
Bper.ted credit loss allowance closing balance - 403,57 403.57 765.18 351.99 1,117.17

*The addition in ECL s due to increase in loans outstanding on 31 March 24 as compared to 31 March 23
**The decrease in ECLis due to decrease in loans outstanding on 31 March 24 as compared to 31 March 23

Collateral

In case of corporate term loans the Holding Company is in the business of extending secured loans mainly backed by mortgage of property {resldenttal or commercial).
In addition to the above mentioned collateral, the Holding Company holds other types of collateral and credit enhancements, such as cross-collateralisation on other assets of the borrower,

share pledge, guarantees of parent/holding/group companies, personal guarantees of promoters/partners/proprietors, hypothecation of receivables via escrow account and others

Consumer secured loans are hypathecated by first and exclusive charge on the product financed by the Holding Company.
In its normal course of business, the Holding Company does not physically repossess properties or other assets, but recovery efforts are made on delinquent loans through callection

executives, along with legal means to recover due loan repayments

Once contractual loan repayments are more than 90 days past due, repossession of property may be initiated under the provisions of the SARFAESI Act 2002 Re-possessed property is
disposed off in the manner prescribed in the SARFAES act to recover outstanding debt

NEW.OELH
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Investments

As at March 31, 2024

DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
{All Amount in Rs. in millions, unless otherwise stated)

{A) Equity instruments

(8)

Investments in Assoclate
Equlty shares In DMI Alternatives Private Limited**
Subtotal
Mutual funds
76,949,851 units in HDFC liquid fund-direct plan-growth
Subtotal
Others
Equity shares in DMI Infotech Solutions Private Limited {(Formerly known
as DMI Consumer Credit Private Limited)
Equity shares in Flash Electronics Private Limited**
Equity shares in Alchemist Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
Equity shares in Azad Engineering Private Limited**
Equity shares in Radiant Polymers Private Limited**
Subtotal
Preference shares
Investments in Joint Venture
Compulsorily convertible preference shares in Ampverse DMI Private
Limited
Investments in Others
Compulsory convertible preference shares in Alchemist Asset
Reconstruction Company Limited
Compulsorily convertibte preference shares in Saarathi Finbiz Private
Limited
Subtotal
Compulsory or Optlonally Convertlble Debentures
7,500 Optionally convertible debentures in DMI Infotech Solutions
Private Limited{{Formerly known as DM| Consumer Credit Private
Limited) of face value of Rs 100,000 each
Complusory convertible debentures in Biorad Medisys Private Limited of
face value of Rs. 10,00,000 each**
Subtotal
Credit Substitutes
BOS units of Saha Estate Developer Private Limited of face value Rs
1,000,000 fully paid up
Units of Raheja Icon Entertainment Private Limited of face value Rs
1,000,000 fully paid up***
Subtotal

Investment in Pass through certificates(unquoted)
Other instruments

Units of DMI AIF Special Opportunities Scheme

Subtotal

Total {A) Gross
Less: Impairment loss allowance
Total (A) Net

Investments outside India
Investments in India

Total (B) Gross

Less: Impairment loss allowance
Total {B) Net

“ At cost
** Sold during the year
“** Written off during the year

N At fair value
At fair value through other
Amortlsed cast  through profit e Subtotal Others* Total
comprehensive
and loss
income

36501 365.01 36501

= 365.01 - 365.01 = 365.01

- - 358 3.58 - 3.58

219.24 219.24 - 219.24

222.82 222.82 222.82

< 94.75 94.75

34.50 34,50 34.50

160.01 160.01 160.01

- 194.51 194.51 94,75 289.26

752.88 752.88 752.88

= 752.88 752.88 752.88

59377 21339 407 16 2 807.16

53377 - 21338 807.16 807.16

3,673 46 3,673.46 3,673.46

580 5.80 5.80

5.80 5.80 L 5.80

4,267.23 365.01 1,389.40 6,021.64 94.75 6,116.39

296 48 : 106 69 403 57 - 403.57
3,970.35 365.01 !,!=§1.71 5,51_8.0? 94,75 5,?12.5;

46723 36501 138940 6,021.64 24.75 6,116.35

4,267.23 365.01 1,389.40 6,021.64 94.75 6,116.39

296 88 - 106.69 403.57 - 403,57

3,970.35 1,282.71 5,618.07 94.75 5,712.82




DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(All Amount in Rs. in millions, unless otherwise stated)

At fair value

At fair value h h oth
As at March 31, 2023 Amortised cost  through profit thraugh o .er Subtotal Others* Total
comprehensive
and loss
Income
{A) Equlty Instruments
Investments In Associate
Equity shares in DMI Alternatives Private Limited - - 7163 71.63
Subtotal = = - = 71.63 71.63
Mutual funds
100,175.67 units in HDFC liquid fund-direct plan-growth 44310 - 443.10 - 443.10
Subtotal = 443.10 - 443,10 - 443.10
Others
Equity shares in DM Infotech Solutions Private Limited {Formerly known - 348 3.48 - 3.48
as DMI Consumer Credit Private Limited)
Equity shares in Flash Electronics Private Limited - - 81897 818.97 818.97
Compulsory convertible preference shares in Alchemlst Asset - 3450 34,50 - 34.50
Reconstruction Company Limited
Equity shares in Alchemist Asset Reconstruction Company Limited - 21576 215.76 - 215.76
Equity shares in Azad Engineering Private Limited 22704 227.04 . 227.04
Equity shares in Radiant Polymers Private Limited - - 100,10 100.10 - 100.10
Subtotal . - 221,04 1,172.81 1,399.85 - 1,399.85
Compulsory or Optlonally Convertible Debentures
7,500 Compulsory convertible debentures in Flash Electronics India . - 1,560.00 1,560.00 - 1,560.00
Private Limited of face value Rs 100,000 each
600 Complusory convertible debentures in Biorad Medisys Private - 600.27 600.27 600.27
Limited of face value of Rs. 10,00,000 each _
Subtotal - ~ 2,160.27 2,160.27 - 2,160.27
Credit Substitutes
805 units of Saha Estate Developer Private Limited of face value Rs 943,72 358.36 1,302.08 . 1,302.08
1,000,000 fully paid up
629 units of Raheja Icon Entertainment Private Limited of face value Rs 172,92 - 179,07 351.99 - 351,99
1,000,000 fully paid up
Subtotal 1,116,64 - 537.43 1,650.07 - 1,654.07
Investmenl in Pass through certificales{unquoted) 3,515.31 - 3,515.31 < 3,515.31
Other Instruments
Units of DMI AIF Special Opportunities Scheme - - 973 9.73 - 9.73
Subtotal _ - - 9.73 9.73 - 9.73
Total {A) - Gross 4,631,95 670.14 3,880.24 9,182.33 71.63 9,253.97
Less: Impairment loss allowance GAR. 447,47 1,117.17 = 111717
Total (A) Net 3,963.25 670.14 3,431L.77 B,065.16 71.63 B,136.80
{B} Investments outside India E . - - - -
Investments in India 4,631.95 670.14 3,380.24 9,182.33 71.63 5,253.97
Total (B) - Gross 4,631.95 670.14 3,980.24 9,182.33 71.63 9,253.97
Less: Impairment loss allowance 668,70 = 443 47 1,117.17 - 1,117.17
Total (8) - Net 3,963.35 f70.14 3,431.77 B,065.16 7163 £,136.80
“ At cost
Notes:

{i) For movement of Impairment loss allowance refer note 7.1
{ii} Detail of Group's associate/joint venture is given below. These are included in the Group's financial statements using equity method of accounting:

Place of Princlpal place of As at March 31,  As at March 31,

Name of entity Principal Actlvity incorporation busingss 2024
Assoclate
DMI Alternatives Private Limited {upto 25 Sep 2023} Investment Manager Delhi Delhi 0.00% 49 00%
Jolnt Venture
Ampverse DM Private Limited (we 05 July 2023) Promobion of piports Dl Bethl A9.00% 0.00%
{iii} An analysis of Group’s investment in associate/joint venture is as follows:
Joint Venture Associate
Year endod Year anded Yeor ended Year ended

March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year - - 71.63 126.30
Addition/Adjustment 131.20 . (5.03) -
Disposal E - .
Share of Profits/{Loss) (36.45) - (2099} (54.67)
Dividend received - .
Less: Sale proceeds . 67.05
Add: Profit on sale = 21.44 =
Balance at the end of the year 94.75 - - 71.63

(iv) Financial information
None of the associates/joint venture of the Group is individually material, financial information aggregating 100% of the results is as follows:

loint Venture Assoclate
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Profit/ {loss) after tax (74.38) {42.84) (111.57)

Other Comprehensive income - - -
Total Camprehensive Income (74.38) . (42.84) (111,04}




DM Finance Private Limited
Notes to Consolldated Financial Statements
{Alt Amount in Rs. in millions, unless otherwise stated)

9 ather financlal assets (at amortized cost)

Asat As at
r a

Security deposit 3378 2624
First loss default guarantee recoverable 13013 13313
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 22.50 11.03
Recoverable from partner - 104,24
Unbilled revienue and recoverables 1,015.99 815.36
Others 30.50 -

1,232.90
Less: Impairment loss allowance 63.00
Total 1,165.90

10 Current tax assets {net)
Advance Income-tax {net) 148 20 198.76
Total 148.20 198.76
—
11 Deferred tax assets {net)

Deferred tax liabllity
Fair value of financial instruments 2191 321,69
Leased assets 5524 49,42
Difference in income recognition on unrealized gain on mutual fund investments 1447 9,97
Total deferred tax liabilities 91.62 381.08
Deferred tax asset
Provision for employee benefits 36.00 30.85
Difference in written down value as per Companies Act and Income-tax Act 16 57 15.12
EIR adjustment for processing fee 771.95 260.36
Liability against leases 66.26 60,47
Impairment loss allowance 1,264.67 1,200.30
Notional Interest on Market linked debentures 4898 14,57
Non deductible tax expenses 0.09 0.08
Carry forward of losses 45.47 18.82
Total deferred tax asset 2,249.99 1,600.57
MNet deferred tax asset 2,153_.37 1,219.49

(Charged)/credit

{Charged)/ credited

Meovement of deferred tax assets As at to statement of ed to other Asat
March 31, 2023 . comprehensive March 31, 2024
profit and loss
Income
Liabllities
Fair value of financial instruments 321.69 {299.84} 0,06 2191
Leased assets 49.42 582 55.24
Difference in income recognition on unrealized gain on mutual fund 997 4.50 14.47
investments
Deferred tax liabillties 381.08 {289.52) 0.06 91.62
Assets
Provision for employee benefits 3085 541 (0.26) 36.00
Difference in written down value as per Companies Act and Income-tax Act 15.12 145 - 16.57
EIR adjustment for processing fee 26036 511.59 771.95
Liability against leases 6047 5.79 66.26
Impairment loss allowance 1,200.30 64.37 1,264.67
Notional Interest on Market linked debentures 1457 3441 48.98
Non deductible TDS expenses 0.08 001 0.09
Carry forward of Losses 18.82 26.65 45.47
Carry forward of interest disallowed u/s 94B = .
Defarred tax assets 1,600.57 BA9.68 [0.26) 2,249.99
Mot deferred tax asset 1,219.43 939,20 {0.32) 2,158.37
Charged|
{Charged)/ credited {charged)/
Movement of deferred tax asset: As at to statement of criedRed tigither As at
as:
oveme € ets March 31, 2022 camprehonsive March 31, 2023
profit and loss
[ngome
Liabllitles
Fair value of financial instruments 37933 (114.96) 57.32 32169
Leased assets 5913 {9.71) E 49 42
Difference in income recognition on unrealized gain on mutual fund 23 80 {13.83) 9.97
Defarred tax liabilities 462.26 {138.50) 57.32 381.08
Assets
Provision for employee benefits 2096 1113 {124) 3085
Difference in written down value as per Companies Act and Income-tax Act 12.18 294 - 15.12
EIR adjustment for processing fee 77.29 183.07 260.36
Liability against leases 69.04 (8.57) 60.47
Impairment loss allowance 1,131.17 69.13 1,200.30
Notional Interest on Market linked debentures 14.57 14.57
Non deductible tax expenses ] 0.08 0.08
Carry forward of Losses 3.23 1559 18 82
Carry farward of intorost disallowed ufs 948 28.53 [78.53) - -
Delarred tak assets 1,342 40 259,41 (1.24) 1,600.57
Net deferred tax assets 880,14 397.91 {58.56) 1,219.49




DMI Finance Private Limited

Notes to Ct

d Financial

(All Amount in Rs. in milllans, unless otherwise stated)

12 Property, plant and equipment {at cost or deemed cost)

Fumiture.and Computers Vehicles Office equipment "7 huld Total
—Mhetiras_
Gross carrying amount
Balance as at April 01, 2022 190 5765 555 32.69 137.28 235,07
Additions 011 3221 674 4398 B3 04
Disposals FUELD] [UEER {0.u2) - [§EERN
Balance as at March 31, 2023 1,95 88.93 5.55 39,41 181.26 317.10
Additions 002 2118 641 799 1545 5135
Disposals - 10 1) . - (LERE
Balance as at March 31, 2024 197 9723 ?.H§ 47,40 186.71 35!.2&
Accumulated depreciallon
Balance as at April 01, 2022 113 39.34 4.69 26 85 58.42 13043
Charge for the year 024 1895 026 508 1981 44 35
Disposals [{ifeal] LR {n.03) o568}
Balance as at March 31, 2023 134 57.66 495 iLm 823 174,10
Charge for the year ols 250 111 531 20 40 50.47
Disposals 112 34} (60 - - (1607
Balance as at March 31, 2024 140 %78 237 Yy g $B63 208.50
Net carrying amount
As at March 31, 2022 oy .31 085 5.8 78,86 10%.64
As at March 31, 2023 0.61 .27 060 7.50 103,03 1400
As at March 31,2024 man M55 san 1047 58.08 14176
Notes:
1) Leasehold imp comprises i incurred for the eanslruction on the properly obtained on lease as disclosed in Note 15 - Right of use assets,

11} During the current financial year and in he previaus financial year there is na revaluation of Properly, plants and equipment,

WY There is no proceeding initiated against the Group for the properLies under Lhe Benami Transaclions (Prohibition) Act, 1908 and the rules made thereunder,

13 (a) Capltal work In progress

Capital work In progress

As at 31 March, 2024

Projects in progress
Projects temporarily suspended

Az ar 31 March, 2023

Projects in progress
Projects temporarily suspended

Asat As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Conlractual commitments Lo be execuled on capital account amannling ta Rs. 7.47 millions {previous year: 4 05 millions)

13 (b) assels under

Intangible assets under development

As at 31 March, 2024

Projects In progress
Projects temporarily suspended

As al 31 March, 2023

Projects in progress

Projects temporarily suspended

Note:

468 -
4.68 -
Amount n CWIF far s perlsd
Less Lhan 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Tolal
Ly 3 yoars
4 6B - - 4.68
aps = = - 468
= Auraunt b CWIP for a parfad
Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
1 year 3 yrars
s at Ay at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

254 878
2,54 8.78
Amount (n Intangible sswets undet davelopment for a per
Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
1 year 3 yanrs
254 = N 2.54
254 z * 254

Amuint in Intanglide assets under develapmont for a period
Less than 1-2 years 2.3 years More than Total

1 ypar 3 yejirs

L = - & BIB

Cantractual commitments to be executed on capital account amounting to Rs 047 millions {previous year: Rs 2,50 millions)




OMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to C: lidated Financial
{All Amount in Rs. in millions, unless otherwise stated)

14 Goodwill

Partieutars

As at

As at

Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Cost or drnmad cost 353 25353

Actrmulatod impaltinesl las =
25353 253 53

Particulars As at Asat

Morch 31, 2024 March 31. 2033

Cost or deemed cost

Batance al Lhe heginning of the year 25353 253.53
Additions on account of acquisitions/business combinations

Adjustments _ .
Forelgn currency translation reserve

Balapce at the end of the yeal . 25353 253.53
Particulars Asat Asat

March 31, 2024 fdarch 31, 2023

Ralarie= a1 the begnning ol the year 25353 253 53
Addilions on account of acquisitions/business combinations.

Impairment losses recognised in the year = .
falance a1 thi end of the year 253,53 25353

Notes:

Goodwill represents the cost of business acquisition in excess of the Group's interest in the net fair value of identifiable assets, fiabilities and contingent
liabilities of the acquiree. When the net fair value of the identitiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired exceeds the cost of business acqulsition,
the bargain purchase excess is recognized after reassesing the fair value of net assets acguired in the capital reserve Goodwilll is measured at cost less

accumulated impairment losses,

impairment loss was assessed

15 Right of use assets
Right of use Total
Assety

Gross carrylng amount
Balance as at April 01, 2022 368,99 368.99
Additlons 1027 1027
Disposals F
Balance as at March 31, 2023 379.26
Additions 77.92
Dlsposals . .
Balance as at March 31, 2024 457.18 457.18
Depreclation
Balance as at Aprll 01, 2022 134,04 134,04
Additions 48 87 1887
Disposals
Batnnce 3y at March 11, 2023 132.91 182.91
Additions 5479 54.79
Dispasals = *
Aabince asat March 31, 2024 237.70 237.70
Net carrylng amount
As at March 31, 2022 23495 23495
As at March 31, 2023 196.35 196.35
As at March 31, 2024 219,48 21948
Note: For other delails please refer Note 48

16 Other Intanglble assets

Software Total

Gross carrylng amount
Balance as sk April 01, 2022 65.20 65.20
Additions 595 5.95
Disposals .. z
Balance as at March 31, 2023 71.15 71.15
Additions 2164 21.64
Disposals (3.21) (3.21)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 -89.58 LR
Amortization
Balance as at Aprll 01, 2022 33.80 33.80
Additions 1569 15.69
Disposals -] =
Balance as at March 31, 2023 45.43 A9.49
Additlons 1718 1118
Disposals 3.06 3.06)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 58.61 58.61
Met carryng amount
As at March 31, 2022 31.41 3141
As at March 31, 2023 21,66 2166
As at March 31, 2024 30.97 3097

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in one of the suhsidiary is compared with the synergies arising from the subsidiary. Afler Lesting, no

f

NN

W,

b

W OELY

= NG
(=
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DMI Finance Private Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

{All Amount in Rs, in millions, unless otherwise stated)

Other non- financlal assets

Prepaid expenses

Balances with statutory / government authorities
Advance salary

Advances given to service providers

Other non-financial assets*

Total

*“Includes 18.63 million incurred for expenses in the previous year related to issue of

equity shares and has been adjusted with share premium of the issue, in the current
year {Refer Note 27)

Assets held for sale

Assets under settlement {see note below)

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

218.81 147.40
17.38 6.80
0.02 1.58
71.04 7247
9.33 2151
316.58 249.76
75.00 75.00
75.00 75.00

Note : These assets represent assets acquired from the Holding Company's borrowers as a part of Group’s risk management
strategy. In these cases, the Holding Company had entered into settlement agreement as a prudent measure by the
management wherein the borrower was approached and there was a mutual consensus between the Holding Company and

borrower to transfer the asset in the name of the Holding Company towards settlement of the loan amount.

Basis the development, the Holding Company, on prudent basis, had impaired asset under settlement amounting to Rs. 68.88

million in the previous year




DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(All Amount in Rs. in millions, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

19 Payables

a. Trade payables

i. Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 25.33 8.97
(See note "B" below)
ii. Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 1,796.58 1,165.75
small enterprises
1,821.91 1,174.72

b.  Other payables

. Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises . .

(See note "B" below)
ii. Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 850.37 525.06

small enterprises

850.37 525.06

Total 2,672.28 1,699.78
A) Trade payable and other payable ageing schedule
As at 31 March 2024
i Less than 1
Particulars €ss than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
year

Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 25.33 = 25.33

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small

enterprises 2,448.99 125.83 50.23 21.90 2,646.95
Disputed dues of micro and small enterprises

Disputed dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises

Total 2,474.32 125.83 50.23 21.90 2,672.28

As at 31 March 2023

Particulars Less than 1

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
year

Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 8.97 - . - 8.97
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small

enterprises 1515.98 135.07 31.58 8.18 1690.81

Disputed dues of micro and small enterprises 3 - 2 . &

Disputed dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises

Total 1,524.95 135.07 31.58 8.18 1,699.78
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DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(All Amount in Rs. in millions, unless otherwise stated)

B) Amount outstanding of micro and small enterprises

Based on the responses received from certain suppliers, the Group has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Development Act, 2006 'MSMED Act’). The disclosures pursuant to the said MSMED Act are as follows:

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
i) The Principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at year end
- Principal amount 25.33 8.97
- Interest thereon & -
i) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of MSMED Act, along with the amounts - -
of the payment
iii} the amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment (which has been paid - -
but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the
MSMED Act
iv) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid = 0.03
v) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date - -
when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small investor
Debt securities (at amortised cost)
Non convertible debentures {refer note 20.1) 7,122.07 15,352.85
Commercial paper (refer note 20.2) 245.44 -
Market linked debentures (refer note 20.3) 1,494.65 1,485.06
8,862.16 16,837.91
Secured ** 3,976.72 1,984.92
Unsecured 4,885.44 14,852.99
Total 8,862.16 16,837.91
Debt securities in India 8,862.16 16,837.91
Debt securities outside India < -
Total 8,862.16 16,837.91

** Secured against exclusive floating charge by way of hypothecation of loans and receivables of the Holding Company of Rs. 5,320.00 millions (previous year Rs.

2,668.62 millions).

The Holding Company has not created the Debenture redemption reserve as it is not mandatorily required in accordance with provisions of the Companies Act

2013.
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DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
{All Amount in Rs. in millions, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
21 Borrowings {other than debt securities) {at amortised cost)

Secured
Term loans

From banks and financial institutions {See note i,iv and vii below} 52,377.03 20,489.36
Other loans

Securitisation - PTC Borrowings (See note iii and v below) 7,019 37 2,502 81
Cash credit and overdraft

From banks {See note i and ii below) 112.88 496.34
Sub-total {A} 59,509==.18 23,888.51
Unsecured
Term loans

From Individuals (See note vi below) 0.83 083
Sub-total (B) 0.83 0.&
Total {A+B) 59,510:11 23,880.34
Borrowings in India 59,510.11 23,889.34
Borrowings outside India - -
Total ) 55,510.11 23,889.34
Notes:

i) Secured against exclusive floating charge by way of hypothecation of loans and receivables of the Holding Company to the extent of Rs
70,552.22 millions (Previous year: Rs. 28,663.73 millions),

ii} Exclusive hypothecation charge on the standard receivables of the Holding Company at all times and cash credit is repayable on demand.
iii} Secured against exclusive fixed charge by way of hypothecation of loans and receivables of the Holding Company to the extent of Rs

8,988.54 millions (Previous year: Rs, 3,748.46 millions)
iv) Terms of repayment of barrowings as on March 31, 2024 are as follows:

Lender Disbursement Repayment Outstanding as on Outstanding as on
Amount March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Bank of Baroda-2 500 |16 monthly installments 124.80 249 25
Bank of Baroda-3 500 |16 quarterly installments 24935 373.58
Bank of Baroda-4 1,000 |12 quarterly installments 498,46 82914
Bank of Baroda-5 1,000 {12 quarterly instaliments 664.10 994 31
Bank of Baroda-6 3,000 |12 quarterly installments 2,730.82 .
Karnataka Bank Limited -1 200 |11 quarterly installments 18.18 89.86
Karnataka Bank Limited -2 250 |11 quarterly installments 455 11093
Karnataka Bank Limited -3 500 |11 quarterly installments 18117 361 95
Karnataka Bank Limited -4 250 |34 monthly installments 205.41

Karnataka Bank Limited -5 1,000 |34 monthly instaliments 909 .85

Bank of Maharashtra-1 500 |42 monthly instaliments 178.21 32031
Bank of Maharashtra-2 2,000 |42 monthly installments 1,279.77 1,846.91
Bank of Maharashtra-3 2,000 |33 monthly installments 1,747 98

HDFC Bank Limited-2 750 |8 quarterly installments 102.64
HDFC Bank Limited-3 800 |8 quarterly installments 399.23
HDFC Bank Limited-4 1,000 |B quarterly installments 249.86 747.92
HDFC Bank Limited-5 1,000 |8 quarterly installments 166.59 830.56
HDFC Bank Limited-6 2,000 |B quarterly installments 997.66 2,000.00
HDFC Bank Limited-7 2,000 |8 quarterly installments 1,661.09

HDFC Bank Limited-8 1,000 |12 quarterly installments 830.35

HDFC Bank Limited-9 2,930 |B guarterly installments 2,917.79 .
State Bank Of India-1 1,000 |15 quarterly installments 332.17 596.52
State Bank Of India-2 2,000 |15 quarterly installments 1,062.82 1,591.46
State Bank of India -3 2,000 |15 quarterly installments 1,460.89 1,988.97
State Bank of India -4 7,500 |15 quarterly installments 6,926.12

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited-1 400 |24 monthly installments - 149.90
Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited-2 750 |24 monthly installments 93.74 468.26
Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited-3 750 [24 monthly installments 468.36

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited-4 250 |24 monthly installments 170.28

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited-5 1,500 {24 monthly installments 1,31093

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited-6 S00 |24 monthly installments 49931 -
Indusind Bank Limited -1 500 |12 quarterly instaliments 164.36 331.15
Indusind Bank Limited -2 500 |12 quarterly installments 329.80 494,98
Indusind Bank Limited -3 2,500 |12 guarterly installments 2,055.88

Indusind Bank Limited -4 500 |12 quarterly installments 491,45

Punjab National Bank-1 500 |35 monthly installments 140.60 312,51
Punjab National Bank-2 500 |14 quarterly installments 496,27

South Indian Bank Limited -2 500 |15 quarterly installments 26312 398.02
South Indian Bank Limited - 3 1,000 |7 quarterly instaliments 996.84

IIn_dian Bank-1 750 |16 quarterly installments 42092 560.45
Indian Bank-2 500 |11 quarterly installments 36255 497.48
Indian Bank-3 00 16 quarterly installments 49770




DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated FInanclal Statements
{All Amount in Rs. in millions, unless otherwise stated)

Sumit Mitsui Banking Corporati Upto 3 manths
umitomo Mitsui Banking Corporatio 1,000 pto 3 mon 999.73
Sumitome Mitsui Banking 2,000 |Upto 3 months 1,999.45 -
MUFG Bank Limited 4,000 |upto 6 months 4,000.00
€SB Bank Limited-1 500 |12 quarterly installments 205,32 373.43
CSB Bank Limited - 2 250 |12 quarterly installments 20659
DCB Bank 250 |11 quarterly installments 15791 250.02
Bandhan Bank-1 500 |45 monthly installments 364 84 498.48
Bandhan Bank-2 1,000 |45 monthly installments 996.72
Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited- 300 |37 monthly installments 17812 275.16
Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited - 380 |37 monthly installments 33839 -
Jammu & Kashmir Bank Limited 500 |14 quarterly installments 42458 496,25
Canara Bank 1,000 |14 quarterly installments 92231
Axis Bank Ltd-1 1,000 |8 quarterly installments 621.08
Axis Bank Ltd-2 2,000 |8 quarterly installments 1,994.02
Tata Capital Limited 500 |36 monthly installments 388.04
Indian Overseas Bank 500 |14 quarterly installments 494 84
Bajaj Finance Limited 1,000 |36 monthly installments 886.42
Federal Bank Limited 500 |10 quarterly instaliments 445 56
Aditya Birla Finance Limited 500 |12 quarterly installments 45663
Poanawalla Fincorp Limited 500 {36 monthly installments 473.68
UCO Bank 2,000 |12 quarterly installments 1,812.62
HDFC Bank Limited WCDL 450 |Upto 90 days 450.00 450,00
Indusind Bank Limited WCDL 250 |upto 360 days 24981 -
Indian Bank WCDL 150 |Upto 1 year 150.00 -
HDFC Bank Limited CC WCDL 500 |5 months - 500.00
Total 52,377.03 20,489.36
Interest rate ranges from 8.00% p.a to 10.10% p.a
Security cover ratio ranges from 1,10 times to 1.33 times
v) Terms of repayment of Securitization- PTC borrowings as on March 31, 2024 are as follows:
Securitisation Total Amount Payment Terms Outstanding as on Outstanding as on
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
MOST | 2,381.00 Monthly Payout to the Trust 119.00
on the Pay in Date
P
LUM I 77270 Monthly Péyout to the Trust 2120 552.50
on the Pay in Date
PLUM | 905.30 Monthly P?yout to the Trust 20157 748,30
on the Pay in Date
PLUM I 1,49120 Monthly PE.IVOUT to the Trust 483,65 1,483.01
on the Pay in Date
PLUM 24-1 830.02 Monthly Payout to the Trust 21353
on the Pay in Date
PLUM 24-2 649.09 Monthly Payout to the Trust 17188
on the Pay in Date
PLUM 24-3 1,504 46 Monthly Payout to the Trust 411,56 R
on the Pay in Date
PLUM 24-4 127238 Monthly Payout to the Trust 773.37
on the Pay in Date
PLUM 24-5 977.60 Monthly Pa'vout to the Trust 715.54
on the Pay in Date
PLUM 24-6 514.28 Monthly Pa_yout to the Trust 406.99
on the Pay in Date
PLUM 24-7 1,862 79 Monthly Pa_vout to the Trust 1,713.79
on the Payin Date
PLUM 24-10 48334 Monthly Payout to the Trust 28117
on the Pay in Date
PLUM 24-11 1,028.20 Monthly Payout to the Trust 1,025.12
on the Pay in Date
Total 7,019.37 2,802.81

Interest rate ranges from 9.15% p.a to 9-35% p.a

vi) Unsecured interest free loans from individuals are repayable on demand

vii) Secured term loans from banks amounting to Rs, 52,377.03 millions {Previous year: Rs 20,489 36 millions) and carry rate of interest in
the range of 8.00% to 10 10% p.a. (Previous year: 6.00% to 12 00% p a ) The loans are having tenure of upto 4 years from the date of
disbursement and are repayable in both monthly and quarterly installments

viii) The Group has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to its lenders
ix)The Group has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any of banks, financial institution or any other lender

x) The Group has been submitting monthly/quarterly receivable/stock data with the lenders as per the provision of sanction letters and there

are no discrepancies between receivable/stock data submitted to the lenders and book of accounts.

i) The Group doesn't have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond statutory period except charge
amounting to 7,221.91 millions on terms loans outstanding amounting to 5,430 millions, which is yet to be registered with the ROC, since the
deed of hypothecation was not executed as at 31 March 2024

xii) The Group has utilised the funds raised raised from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which they are borrowed,
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As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
22 Lease liabilities
Lease liabilities (refer note 48) 265.29 242.29
265.29 242,29
23 Other financial liabilities
Interest accrued but not due
- Debt securities 282.25 208.49
- Borrowings other than debt securities 206.49 75.49
488.74 283.98
24 Provisions
Provision for gratuity {refer note 40) 56.01 41.69
Provision for compensated absences 83.43 60.62
139.44 102.31
25 Other non-financial liabllitles
Statutory dues payable 292,78 22362
Advances for goods and services 142.16 3313
Prepaid Payment Instrument balances - 0.33
Security deposit 471 4.71

439.65 261.79
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26.1

26.2

26.3
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DMI Finance Private Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Al Amount in Rs. tn millions, unless otherwise stated)

Equity share capital

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
. Authorized share capital
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 1,965,000,000 19,650.00 1,965,000,000 19,650.00
Compulsorily convertible preference shares of Rs, 10 each 35,000,000 350.00 35,000,000 350.00
2,000,000,000 20,000.00 2,000,000,000 20,000.00
. Issued, subscribed and paid up
Fully called-up and paid-up
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 740,864,608 7,408.65 655,152,742 6,551.53
Sub total (A) 740,864,608 7,408.65 655,152,742 6,551.53
Partly called-up and paid-up
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 57,315,400 16.22 57,315,400 16.22
Sub total (B) 57,315,400 16.22 57,315,400 16.22
Total (A+B) 798,180,008 7,424.87 712,468,142 6,567.75
The reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
Balance at the beginning of year 712,468,142 6,567.75 712,393,401 6,567.00
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors - -
Restated balance at the beginning of the period 712,468,142 6,567.75 712,393,401 6,567.00
Shares issued during the year 85,711,866 857.12 74,741 0.75
First call money called on party paid up shares - - - -
Balance at the end of year 798,180,008 7,424.87 712,468,142 6,567.75
Shares held by parent company
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
No. of shares % holding No. of shares % holding
DM Limited 519,272,316 69.94% 519,889,603 79.16%
519,272,316 69.94% 519,889,603 79.16%

As per records of the Holding Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial

interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Name of the shareholder As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

No. of shares % holding No. of shares % holding
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up
DMI Limited 519,272,316 69.94% 519,889,603 79.16%
NIS Ganesha S.A. 64,735,441 8.72% 64,735,441 9.86%
MUFG Bank Limited 73,830,443 9.94% = =

Note: As per records of the Holding Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial

interest, the above shareholding represents bath legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

During the current year, the Holding Company has issued 34,43,272 equity shares at a face value of Rs. 10 each on the exercise of stock options and warrants. The

amount received on these issues aggregates to Rs. 285.39 million.

(i) % holding is calculated on the basis of paid up capital.
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26.4 Details of shares held by promoters

Particulars As at March 31,2024  As at March 31, 2023
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up

No. of shares at the beginning of the year 519,889,603 519,889,603
Change during the year (617,287) -
No. of shares at the end of the year 519,272,316 519,889,603
% of total shares 69.94% 79.16%
% change during the year {11.65%) (0.01%)

DMI Limited is the promoter of the Holding Company
26.5 Rights, preferences and restrictions

The Holding Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. The
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, In the event of liquidation of the
Holding Company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Holding Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of the equity shares held by the shareholders.

26.6 Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash during the five years
The Holding Company has not issued any shares pursuant to a contract without payment being received in cash nor allotted as fully paid up by the way of bonus
shares and there has not been any buy back of shares in the current period and the immediately preceding four years

26.7 Uncalled and Unpaid Capital
There are 5,73,15,400 equity shares issued by the Holding Company against which, the Holding Company has received Rs. 165.25 millions (including securities
Premium of Rs. 149.03 millions). Balance amount is not called up by the Holding Company.

26.8 The Holding Company has filed an application under Section 66(1){a) of Companies Act, 2013 with Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”) for reduction of
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up share Capital of the Holding Company on June 8, 2022. Pursuant to such capital reduction 5,73,15,400 partly paid equity shares are
expected to be reduced to 16,22,138 shares. Further, the order from NCLT is awaited,

26.9 Share application money pending allotment
The Holding Company has received Rs. 1.84 millions on which allotment of shares is not yet made.
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Security premlum

Securities premium represents premium received on issue of shares. The amount is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013

Capital redemption reserve

The same had been created in accordance with provisions of the Companies Act 2013 on buy back of shares

Statutory reserve u/s 45-IC of RBI Act

The reserve is created as per the provision of Section 45 {IC) of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, This is a restricted reserve and no appropriation can be made from this reserve fund except for the purpose
as may be prescribed by Reserve Bank of India.

Share option outstanding account

The reserve is used to recognise the fair value of the options issued to employees of the Holding ompany and subsidiary companies under Company’s employee stock option plan

Share warrant reserve

The reserve is used to recognise the fair value of the warrants issued to consultants of the Holding Company and subsidiary companies

Retained earnings
Retained earnings or accumulated surplus represents total of all profits retained since the Holding Company's inception. Retained earnings are credited with current year profits, reduced by losses, if any,
dividend payouts, or any such other appropriations to specific reserves,

Upfront monies received on share warrant

Upfront monies received on share warrant represents the upfront monies received against the share warrants issued by the Holding Company.

Share application money pending allotment
The Holding Company has received Rs. 1.84 millians on which allotment of shares is not yet made

Non-controlling Interests

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 26.65 29.13
Share of profit/{loss) for the year {3.55) (248}
Balance at the end of the year 23.10 26.65
Details of non-wholly owned subsldiary that have non-controlling interests
The table shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group that has non-controlling interests:
Name of Subsidiary Place of Proportion of ownership interests Prafit/{lass] allocated to non-contralling
incorporation | March 31,2024 | March 31,2023 March 31,2024 |  March 31,2023
Appnit Technologies Private Limited India 5_22%| 5.96% (3.55]| {2.48)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Financial assets 369.63 152.82
Non Financial assets 135.72 103.74
Financial liabilities 13451 7.39
Non Financial liabilities 150.00 3785
Equity attributable to the owners of the company 197.72 184 67
Non-cantrolling interests 2310 26.65
Partlculars Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Income 198.66 4802
Expenses {including taxes) 258.23 89.74
Profit/(loss) for the year {59.57) {41.72)
Profit/(loss) attributable to the owners of the Company (56.02) {39.24)
Profit/(loss) attributable to the non-controlling interests (3.55) (2.48)
Other comprehensive income for the year 0.08 0.08
Other comprehensive income attributable to the owners of the Company 0.08 0.08
Other comprehensive income attributable to the non-controlling interests - E
Total comprehensive Income of the year (59.49} {41.64)

Note: Above numbers are gross.
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27 Other equity

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Securities premium 46,561.46 25,711.77
Capital redemption reserve 81.21 8121
Statutory reserve u/s 45-IC of RBI Act 2,57433 1,741 05
Share based payment outstanding reserve 501.65 305.07
Share warrant reserve 100.93 74.80
Retained earnings 9,977.52 6,833.23
Other comprehensive income 861.02 860.05
Upfront monies received on share warrant 0.72 0.72
Share application money pending allotment 1.84 .
Total 60,660.68 35,607.90
Securities premium

Opening balance 25,711.77 25,707.55
Add : Premium on shares issued during the year {including shares issued under Employees 20,873 32 422
Stack Option plan}

Less:Expenses related to issue of equity shares*® {23.63) -
Closing balance 46,561.46 25,711.77
* Includes 18 63 millions incurred in previous financial year

Capital redemption reserve

Opening balance 81.21 B1.21
Add : Additions during the year = -
Closing balance B1.21 B1.21
Statutory reserve u/s 45-1C of RBI Act

Opening balance 1,741.05 1,093.02
Add : Transfer during the year from Surplus in statement of profit and loss 833.28 64803
Closing balance 2,574.33 1,741.05
Share based payment outstanding reserve

Openlng balance 305.07 197.02
Add: Granted/vested during the year 291.50 121.83
Less : Exercised during the year {94.92) (3.78)
Closing balance 501.65 305.07
Share warrant reserve

Opening balance 74.80 32,44
Add: Share warrants granted during the year 53.89 4236
Less: Share warrants exercised during the year (27.76)

Closing balance 100.93 74.80
Retalned earnings

Opening balance 6,833.23 4,333.59
Add : Profit for the year 3,977.57 3,147.67
Less : Transfer to reserve fund as per section 45 IC of RBI Act, 1934 (833.28) (648.03)
Closing balance 9,977.52 6,833.23
Upfrant monies recelved on share warrant

Opening balance 072 0,50
Add : Amount received during the year 0.22
Closing balance 0.72 0.72
Other Comprehensive Income

Opening balance 860.05 685.96
Add: Remeasurement gain on defined benefit plan 0.79 3.69
Add : Gain on Fair Value changes {debt and equity) {796.30) 170.40
Add: Realised Gain on investments 796.48 -
Closing balance 861.02 B60.05
Share application money pending allotment

Opening balance

Add: Amount received during the year 1.84

Closing balance 1.84 -
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29 lnterest Income

Year ended March 31, 2024 Year ended March 31, 2023
On financial On fInancial
instruments On financial On financial assets instruments On financlal assets  On flnancial assets
measured at fair  assets measured  measured at fair  measured at fair measured at measured at falr value
value through at Amortised cost  value through OCI value through Amortised cost through OC1
Profit & Loss Profit & Loss
Interest income on portfolio loans 24,582 38 1499 - 15,351.00 2151
Interest income on investments - 504 11 14374 106,92 256,47 15550
Interest on deposits with bank - 57 23 38.65
- 25,143.72 158.73 106.92 15,686.12 177.01
Total interest Income 25,302.45 15,970.05
29A Dividend Income Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Dividend Income . 334
- 3.34
30 Fees and commission income
Amaount invoiced Revenue booked
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31,2023 March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Foreclosure Income 77.56 18.49 77.56 1849
Service and adminstration income 31398 9369 313,98 93.69
Distribution income 96.71 - 96.71 -
Consulting fee i1 40 46 111 4046
Payment gateway fee 11195 3598 111,95 35,98
Others 152.97 7679
601.31 1BB.62 754.28 265.41
31 Net gain on fair value changes
Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
{A) Net gain on flnancial instruments at fair value through profit and loss
On financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss 487.85 199.06
{B) others - =
AB7.85 199.06
Analysls of fair value changes”
Realised 370.60 33928
Unrealised 117.25 (140.22)
487.85 199.06
"shows the change from the date of investment
32 Other Income
Cost sharing from group companies 45.46 158.73
Interest income on Income tax refund 0.09 032
Interest income on unsecured loans 112 1.25
Liabilities no longer required written back 14041 4,24
Foreign exchange gain (net) 0.02 0.01
Miscellaneous income 8.49 18.01
195.59 182,56
33 Finance costs
Interest on financlal llabilities {measured at amortised cost)
Interest on debt securities
- oh non convertible debentures 1,017 99 1,533.36
- on market linked debentures 146.30 6211
- on commercial paper 48.40
Interest on borrowings (other than debt securities}
- on bank term loan 3,180.26 1,189.84
- on bank cash credit 1466 2019
Other interest expense
- on delayed deposit of statutary dues 386
- on leasing arrangements 2373 26.33
- securitisation 421.41 179.96
Other borrowing costs 1092 6.87

4,867.53 3,018.66
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Year ended Year ended
34 Feesand commission expense March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Selling partner commission 1,584.00 1,32974
Others 174.82 2739
1,758.82 1,357.13
35 Impalrment on financial instruments
Expected credit loss allowance (116.81) 46124
Write offs 9,265.47 3,550.96
9,148.66 4,012.20
36 Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus 1,243.39 1,074.65
Contribution to provident and other funds 19.16 16 30
Gratuity expenses (refer note 40) 17.71 14.29
Share based payment to employees ** 351.42 134.22
Staff welfare expenses 64.98 42,15
1,696.66 1,281.61
** |ncludes 14,41 millions {Previous year : 12 39 millions) of warrants issued by Group Company (DMI Housing Finance) to
employees of the Holding Company
37 Depreclation and amortization
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment {See note 12} 50.47 4435
Amortisation of right of use assets (See note 15) 54.79 48.87
Amortisation of other intangible assets (See note 16) 12.18 15.69
117.44 108.91
38 Other expenses
Advertisement expenses 54,90 2531
Legal and professional fees* 1,377.37 91544
Travelling and conveyance expenses 68.90 75.43
Auditor's remuneration (refer note 38.1) 5.58 5.09
IT expenses 650.04 491.85
Rates and taxes 28.54 744
Rent 9.76 1076
Goods and service tax 73643 420,12
Director's sitting fee 0.84 0.76
Corporate social responsibility (refer nate 38 2} 3721 16.88
Repair and maintenance 24.70 2620
Insurance expense 4.76 1.50
Credit evaluation fee 585.48 328.60
Credit rating fee 18.14 9.93
Customer onboarding expenses . 0.06
Assets held for sale written off 69.17
Collection charges 137.44 :
Miscellaneous expenses 9247 112.41
3,832.56 2,516.95
* Includes share warrant expense amounting to Rs. 8.76 millions {previous year Rs. 40 79 millions)
38.1 Auditor's remuneration {(excluding applicable taxes)
- as auditors = 360 336
- for tax audit 035 0.36
- for other services 130 112
- out of pocket expenses 0.33 025

5.58 5.09
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38.2 Corporate soclal responsiblility {CSR)

39

In respect of Corporate Soclal Responsibility activities, gross amount required to be spent by the Group during the year was Rs. 37.18 millions in FY 2023-24 {Previous Year Rs.
16 88 millions) and Group has spent Rs. 36,18 millions in FY 2023-24 {Previous Year Rs. 15 94 millions}.

Year ended Year ended

March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Gross amount unspent for the last year 094
Gross amount required to be spent by the Group during the year 37.19 1688
Amount spent during the year 36.18 15.94
Pald In cash 36.18 15.94
Yet to be pald in cash 101 -
Nature of CSR Actlvities (See Note "d")
Education, Nutrition and Women Empowerment 22,20 10.44
Promoting and development towards healthcare 073 .
Training and helping Indian Athletes to win Olympic Gold medals 2.22 -
Uplifment of abandoned and poor 3,00 4.00
Provision of low cost sanitation 2,50 1.50
Rural women development 3,00
Welfare of stray dogs 1,00

Notes :
a) There is no transaction with related parties as defined under the IND AS 24 'Related Party Disclosures'

b) There is a provision of 1 01 millions in the books as at March 31, 2024 (Previous year Rs 0 94 millions)
¢) As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule VII, unspent amount of Rs. 1.01 million wifl be spent within 6 months from the end of FY, Le. latest by
Sept 30, 2024 in the specified fund (Unspent amount in the previous year of Rs 0.94 million was transferred to the specified fund on 15th June, 2023)

d) The above spent amount of Rs. 36,18 million includes administrative expenses of Rs, 1.53 million as allowed as per the CSR Rules.

Earning per share (EPS) Year ended Year ended
8P March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Net profit attributable to equity shareholders 3,974.02 3,145.19
Net profit for the year for basic EPS 3,974.02 3,14519
Dilutive impact of convertible instruments - -
Net profit for the year for dilutive EPS 3,974.02 3,145.19
Nominal value of equity shares {In Rs.} 10.00 10.00
Welghted-average number of equlty shares for basic EPS (Face value of share Rs. 10 each] 739,139,701 656,716,725
Weighted average number of potential equity shares on exercise of stock option and warrants 8,289,717 9,834,747
Welghted-average number of equity shares for dllutive EPS (Face value of share Rs. 10 each) 747,423,418 666,551,472
Baslc EPS 5.45 487
Dilutive EPS 5.39 4.80

{‘_‘%
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40 Retirement benefit plan

Defined contribution plan
A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions; there is no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
contributions. The assets of the plan are held separately from those of the Group in a fund under the control of trustees.

The total expense charged to statement of profit and loss during the current year Rs. 19.16 millions (previous year: Rs. 16.30 millions } represents
contributions payable to these plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the plan.

Defined benefit plan

The Group has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days
salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The scheme is unfunded.

Provision for unfunded Gratuity for all employees is based upon actuarial valuations carried out at the end of every financial year. Major drivers in
actuarial assumptions, typically, are years of service and employee compensation. Pursuant to the issuance of the Indian Accounting Standard (IndAS) 19
on ‘Employee Benefits’, commitments are actuarially determined using the ‘Projected Unit Credit’ Method. Gains and losses on changes in actuarial
assumptions are accounted for in the "Other comprehensive Income".

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and the funded status and amounts

recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans:

Changes in the defined benefit obligation: As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Balance at the beginning of the year 41.69 34.56
Current service cost 14.64 11.81
Interest cost 3.07 248
Benefits Paid {2.33) (2.23)
Remeasurement {gain) (1.06) {4.93)
Balance at the end of the year 56.01 41.69
Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss is as under: Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Current service cost 14.64 11.81
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 3.07 2.48
Net impact on profit before tax 17.71 14.29
Amount recognised in the other comprehensive income:
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense) - .
Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions d {0.04)
Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions 2.05 {1.85)
Experience adjustments (3.11) (3.04)
Impact on other comprehensive income (1.06) {4.93)
The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Group’s plans are shoy\m below:
Economic assumptions
Discount rate 7.11% 7.36%
Future salary increases 6.00% 6.00%
Demographic assumptions
Retirement age 60 60

Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability

100% of 1ALM (2012- 100% of IALM (2012-

14) 14)
Attrition at ages (withdrawal rate)
(i} up to 30 years 3.00% 3.00%
{ii) From 31 to 44 years 2.00% 2.00%
{iif) Above 44 years 1.00% 1.00%

Note: The discount rate is generally based upon the market yields available on Government bonds at the accounting date relevant to currency of benefit
payments for a term that matches the liabilities. Salary growth rate is Group’s long term best estimate as to salary increases and takes account of
infiation, seniority, promotion, business plan, HR policy and other relevant factors on long term basis as provided in relevant accounting standard.
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Sensitivity analysis for gratuity liability Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Impact of the change in discount rate
Impact due to increase of 0.50 % (4.01) (3.02)
Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 4.44 3.34

Impact of the change in salary increase

Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 3.25 2.60
Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % (3.16) (2.39)

The following is the maturity profile of gratuity:

Expected payment for future years As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Oto 1year 1.08 0.81
1to 2 year 0.81 0.60
2 to 3 year 0.92 0.67
3to 4 year 1.26 0.72
410 5 year 1.33 0.95
5to 6 year 243 0.94
6th year onwards 48.18 37.00

Total expected payments 56.01 41.69
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DMI Finance Private Limited
Medes to Carealtdated Tinanelal Statomarnts
{All Amount in Rs, In milllons, unless otherwlse stated)

11, Recanclllation of aptlons
March 31, 2024

Optlons outstanding Welghted average

arantod dusmg the | Ewerchied durlng, | Lapsed durlng the | Gutstanding at tho

Sthome Mame at the beginning of Hiecuaar ar R i
the year o " ke SN e {in years)

(DM Finance ESOP Plan 2018 - 11 23,038 - 23,038 - -
[DMI Finance ESOP Plan 2018 1,062,854 616,845 446,009 050
DM ESOP Plan, Managemenl Scheme - | 7,073 7,073 -
[DM) ESOP Plan, Management Scheme - Il 579,148 . 507,434 71,714 050
DM ESOP Plan, Legacy Scheme 281,354 143,004 . 138,350 000
(DM ESOP PLAN 2019 625,248 . 265,205 360,043 100
Founder Circle Award 2019-20 {NBFC Apr'20) 1,335,000 940,000 395,000 106
[OMI Finance ESOP Plan 2020 - 11 23,068 13,840 9,228 188
Founder Circle Award 2019-20 {NBFC Apr'20} -1 275,000 275,000 106
DMI Finance ESOP Plan 2020 363,094 112,450 250,644 100
O Hireea L5D1 an 2020 01 9,865 3,810 6,055 176
ML Firanen PMlan 2001 552,939 88,079 4,468 460,392 200
Founder Circle Award 2020 21 {NBFC Apr'21) 270,000 10,000 260,000 200
Founder Circle Award 2020-21 (NBFC Jul'21) 3,011,000 . 30,000 222,000 2,755,000 232
Employmenl Contracts - lan'22 12,210 12,210 272
DM ESOP Plan, Managemenl Scheme - il 18,315 . 18,315 279
Employment Contracts - Feb'22 - | 6,105 - . 6,105 283
Employment Contracts - Feb'22 - (I 7326 7,326 -
Employment Contraets - Feb'22 - (Il 3,663 3,663 293
DM Finance ESOP Plan 2022 501,364 33,877 19,538 447,949 300
DMI Finance ESOP Plan 2022 11 2,497 1,748 749 325
Employment Cantracl - Aug'22 -1l 1,670 1,670
Employment Contracl - Aug22 -l 1,670 1,670 140
Emplayment Contract - Jun'22 5,945 5,945 i3
Employment Contract - Mar'23 29,154 - 29,154 192
Employment Conlracl - Nov'22 2,188 . 2,188
Employment Contracl - Sep*22 2,188 - 2,188 aso
Employment Contracts - Apr'22 1,784 1,784 ios
Employment Contracts - Jul'22 30,000 30,000 328

Contracts - May'22 30,000 - 30,000 303
Founder Circle Award 2022-23 {NBFC Feb'23) 10,048,700 643,000 9,405,700 A84
DMI Finance ESOP Plan 2023 507,595 26,840 480,755 401
Founder Circle Award 2023-24 {NBFC Apr'23) 350,000 350,000 501
Employment Contract  Jul'23 28,946 28,946 425
Employment Conlracl - Oct'23 13,621 2,096 11,525 451
Employment Canlract - lan'24 54,388 54,388 476
Total 18,133,460 054,550 2, 7RA A5 a7 16,352,401

March 31, 2023

Optlons outstanding Welghted average

Granted dung the | Exerclsed during | Lapsed dusing the | Dutstanding st the

Scheme Name at the beginning of h ' ramalning contractua!
the year yoar the ymar yEar enil af the yeir \ite {In years)

[FIRAT Finance ESOF Pian 2018 11 24,577 T 1,488 008
DMI Finance ESOP Plan 2018 1,083,463 20,609 050
DMI ESOP Plan, Management Scheme | 7.073 050
DMI £SOP Plan, Management Scheme - Il 586,222 7,074 050
DMI ESOP Plan, Legacy Scheme 114,148 - 32,794 000
DMI ESOP PLAN 2019 616,899 7.497 14,154 100
Founder Circle Award 2019-20 (NBFC Apr'20) 1,400,000 . . 65,000 206
DMI Finance ESOP Plan 2020 - I| 23,068 . 288
Eaunder Circle Award 2019-20 {NBFC Apr'20) - | 580,000 305,000 206
DMI Finance ESOP Plan 2020 386,823 7,529 18,200 200
DMI Finance ESOP Plan 2020 - IIt 9,865 276
DM Finance Plan 2021 633,708 2481 75,946 100
Founder Circle Award 2020-21 (NBFC Apr'21) 430,000 160,000 3.00
Founder Circle Award 2020-21 {NBFC Jul'21) 3,723,000 712,000 332
Employmenl Contracls - Jan'22 14,432 2,222 an
DMI ESOP Plan, Managemenl Scheme - Il 18,315 ERE]
Employment Contracts - Feb'22 - | 6,105 383
Employment Contracts - Feb'22 - 11 7326 392
Employment Contracts - Feb'22 - Il 3,663 393
DMI Finance ESOP Plan 2022 518,651 17,287 400
DMI Finance ESOP Plan 2022 I - 2.497 . 425
Employment Contract - Aug'22 - I 1,670 437
Employment Contract  Aug'22 - Il 1,670 240
Employmenl Contract tun'22 5,045 423
Employment Contract Mar'23 29,154 492
Employment Contract Nov'22 2,168 461
Employment Contract Sep'22 2,188 150
Employment Contracts - Apr'22 1,784 408
Employment Contracts - luf22 30,000 425
Employment Contracts - May'22 30,000 109
Founder Circle Award 2022-23 (NBFC Feb'23) 10.048,700 584
[Tatal 3,900,537 10,674,147 B [RE

Welghted average exercle price of stock optlons exerclsed during the year Is 75.68 {Previous year: Rs, 48.18)




OMI Finance Private Umited
Notes to Consolldated Financlal Statements
(All Amount In Rs. In milllons, unless otherwlse stated)

1ll. Computation of falr value

For undertaking fair valuation of ESOP, the Halding Company is using Black-Scholes Model

Falr market value af

Scheme Name Valatisty Risk fee fate Dividensd Yiell | Esercise prica (Rs) | Optlon falr value
shares [Rs.]
OMI ESOP PLAN 2019 9549 30 00% 735% 95 49 ELE ]
Founder Circle Award 2019-20 {NBFC Apr'20) 10187 30 00% 650% - 100 00 4075
DMI Finance ESOP Plan 2018 I 2281 1500% 600% 4350 067
DM Finance ESOP Plan 2018 2468 1500% 7 50%) 4674 115
DMI ESOP Plan, Managemenl Scheme - | 2468 15.00% 750% - 4674 115
DMI ESOP Plan, Managemenl Scheme 1t 9549 15 00% 750% 4674 49 45
DM ESOP Plan, Legacy Scheme 2468 15 00% 7.00%) 13.29 1532
DM Finance ESOP Plan 2020 1l 11334 30 00% 614%) 11334 4335
Faunder Cirele Award 2013-20 (NBFC Apr'20) - | 116 36 30 00% 6 14% 116 36 4451
DMI Finance ESOP Plan 2020 11636 30 00% 6 14% 116 36 4451
DMI Finance ESOP Plan 2020 - Il 11334 30 00% 6 14% 11334 2335
o8l Tinance Plar 3071 113 00 3000% 6 60% 11300 4345
Founder Circle Award 2020 21 {NBFC Apr'21) 11300 30 00% 614% 11334 4349
Founder Circle Award 2020-21 {NBFC Jul'21) 1286 30 00% 6 14% 11286 4317
Emplayment Conlracts - Jan'22 209 00 30 00% 660% 209 00 8189
DMI ESOP Plan, Management Scheme il 203 00 30 00% 6 60% 209 060 8189
Employment Conlracts - Feb'22 - | 209 00 30 00% 6 60% 208 60 8169
Employment Contracts - Feh'22 - Il 209.00 30.00% 660% 209 60 8189
Employment Contracls - Feb’22 - Il 20300 30 00% 660% 20900 8189
DM Finance ESOP Plan 2022 21281 2982% 683% 21281 84,13
DMI Finance ESOP Plan 2022 11 21281 29 82% 683% 21281 8413
Employment Contracl - Aug'22 - 1l 21777 2991% 765% - 1777 89,83
Employment Cantract - Aug'22 - Il 21777 2991% 765% 21777 983
Employment Cantract - lun'22 21281 29.82% 683% - 21281 8413
Employment Contract - Mar'23 22511 29.91% 765% 22511 9286
Employment Contract - Nov'22 21777 29 91% 765% 22153 B8 32
Employmenl Conlract - Sep'22 21777 2991% 765% 22153 8832
Employment Contracts  Apr'22 21281 29 A% 683% 21281 8413
Employment Contracts - Jul'22 21797 29.91% 765% 21777 8983
Emplayment Conlracts - May'22 21281 29 82% 6 B3% 21281 8413
Founder Circle Award 2022-23 (NBFC Feb'23) 2511 29 0M1% 765% - 22511 10328
DMI Finance ESOP Plan 2023 25918 24 15% 718% 25918 9557
Founder Circle Award 2023-24 (NBFC Apr'23) 25918 2415% 718% 25318 10715
Emplayment Contract - Jul'23 259.18 19.29% 710% 25918 88.09
Emplayment Contract - Oct‘23 27654 19.09% 772% 28184 9544
Employment Cantracl - Jan'24 28569 18 09% 713% 285 69 95,61

The Holding Company applies the fair value melhod of accounting te accaunt for slack aptions issued by it Lo the emplayees of the Group The fair markel value of such Instruments as at the
grant date 1s recagnized as an expense over the period in which the relaled services arc receved Accordingly, fair value of the stock oplions and restricled slock unils is amorlized on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period of the stock options The Holding Company recognise share based campensation in the Statement of Profit and Loss with a corresponding credit to Share based
paymenls outstanding reserve

Oplions have heen given to employees of the Group in accardance with "OMI Employee Stack Oplion Plan - 2018”
The employees' compensation expense foc Stock options during the year ended 31 March 2024 amounls to Rs 287 45 millions (previous year Rs 133 41 millions)

The Halding Company has enlered inta cosl chargeback agreement with the granler and past this agreement Lhe Holding Company would be required to pay the difference of market price of the
options and exercise price of the options exercised by the employees of the Holding Campany, to DM Housing Finance Private Limited Therefore, in lhe current year, share based compensation
expense has been recognized in the Slatement of Profit and Lass with a corresponding ceedit to a liability account

During the Financial year 2018-19, as pes the scheme oplions were granted to employees of the Granter The Holding Company has recognised the expense of Rs 2 81 Millions {previaus year: Rs
007 Millions) as share hased compensation expense in relalion to these aplions wilh a corresponding credil Lo a liability account which Is Rs 12 87 millions as on March 31,2024 {Rs 1006
Millions as on March 31, 2023)




DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to C lidated Financial
{All Amount in Rs, In milllons, unless otherwise stated)

42 Disclosures In respect of Related Parties as per Indlan Accounting Standard (Ind AS) — 24 'Related Party Disclosures

(a) List of related parties

Parent company
DMI Limited

Assoclate
DMI Alternatives Private Limlted {upto 25 Sep 2023}

Fellow subsidlaries

OMI Infolech Solutions Private Limited {formely known as DMI Consumer Credil Private Limiled)

DMI Housing Finance Private Limited

Jolnt Venture
Ampverse DMI Private Limited {w e f 05 July 2023)

Key managerial personnel (KMP)
Name

Mr. Yuvraja Chanakya Singh

Mr. Shivashish Chaltarjee

Deslgnation
Joint Managing Direclor
Joint Managing Direclor

Mrs Bina Singh Director
Mrs Jayati Chalterjee Director
Mr. Gurcharan Das Dircctor
Mr, Gaurav Burman Director (upto 24 Nov 2023)
Mr Nipender Kochhar Dlrector

Mr Krishan Gopal
Mr Vivek Wadhera

Mr Sahib Pahwa
Mr  Alfred Victor Mendoza

M. Miakarl Dsawi

Ms. Shilpl Varshney

Note:

Chief Financlal Officer {upto 22 May 2023)

Chief Financial Officer {appointed w.e f 14 Aug 2023)
Company Secretary (upto 15 Sep 2023)

Nominee Directar {w e f 14 Nov 2022}

Additional Director {w.e.f 13 Apr 2023},

Nominee Director {w e f 28 Sep 2023)

Company Secretary

{appainted w e | 25 Sep 2023, upto 12 Dec 2023)

1 There is no Company Secretary appoinled by Lhe company on the reporling date.
2 Mr Vivek Wadhera served as Chief Financial Officer upto 01 Apr 2024
3. Mr Jatinder Pal Singh Bhasin was appointed as Interim Chief Financial Offlcer by the Holding Company on 25 Apr 2024,

Relatlves of KMP
Mrs. Mallika Singh
Ms. Promita Chatterjee

Enterprises over which key management personnel and relatives of such | exercise with whom { have been

undertaken:

K2V2, Partnership Firm

Quickwork Technologies Private Limited

2022 Revocable Trust of Yuvraj C Singh

Shivashish Chatterjee Revacable Trust

DMI Alternatives Private Limited {w e f 26 Sep 2023)

DMI Managmeent Private Limited {(w e f 02 Nov 2023)

Entity with signlficant Influence

Baneuhy Fooeed Ineame Limited

{b) Transactlons with related parties:

Name aof related party Nature of transaction For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

DM Housing Finance Private Limited Cost share recovery 3832 6309
Share based payment 1721 1245
Reimbursement of expense paid by 152 4.00
related party on behalf of entity

DMI Alternatives Private Limlted Cost share recovery 44 18 88.21
Share based payment 248 085
Reimbursement of expense paid by 238 134
related party on behalf of entity
Other expenses 3866 -
Sale of units of Alternative Investment 145 -
Fund {Special Opportunities Scheme)
Sale of shares held in DM( Management 4.59

DMI Infotech Solutlons Private Limited {farmely known as DMI  Investment in Optionally Convertible 752 8B

Consumer CredIt Prlvate Limited) Dehentures

Ampverse DMI Private Limited Purchase of Compulsory Convertible 13120
Preterence Shares

Ganesha Fixed Income Limited Interest expenses 1083 1139
Repayment of loan 134 00

2022 Revocable Trust of Yuvraj C Singh Sale of shares held in DMI Allernatives 3352
Sale of unlts of Alternative Investment 189
Fund {Special Opportunities Scheme)

Shivashish Chatterjee Revocable Trust Sale of shares held in DM) Allernatives 3352 +
Sale of units of Alternative investment 183

Fund [Special Opportunities Scheme)




DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to C lidated Financial
{All Amount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated)

Name of related party Nature of transactions For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Mr. Sahlb Pahwa Remuneration 559 603
Loan granted 779 -
Options exercised 520
Roimtsisranmemt of prgnues 001
Repayment of [oan granted 779
Mrs Blna Singh Sitting fee 018 0.14
Reimbijgsement af #aiertes 013 £
Mr, Yuvraja Chanakya Singh Ramuniratian 6106 4256
Post employment benefits 036 036
Mr. Shivashish Chatterjee Remuneration 60 70 4140
Post employment benefits 036 036
Reimbursement of expenses 756 s
Mrs Jayati Chatterjee siying faes 024 024
Mr. Gurcharan Das Sitting Tees 0.16 014
Mr. Nipender Kochhar Sitting fees 026 024
Loan granled 521 -
Interest income on loan 002 =
Warrants cxercised 521 -
Repayment of loan granted 523
MAr. Mok Wadlwr® Remuneration 11.36
eimbursamen] ol pagsenass 006
Mr. Krishan Gopal Remuneralion 316 10.69
Loan granted 081 -
Options exercised 067 -
Repayment of loan granted 081 -
Quickwork Technologies Private Limited Other Expenses 1029 5.81
Ms. Paromita Chalterjee Consultancy Fee 148 119
Ms. Shilpi Varshney RabmriipEration 100 -
*Remuneration does not include post employment heneflits
{c) Outstanding balances wilh related parties:
Name of related party Nature of balances Asat As at
Mareh 31, 2024 Mareh31, 2023
DMI Alternatives Private Limited Employee Stock 658 410
Option Plan
recoverahle
Trade Recelvable 3396 2698
Investment in equity 7163
DMI Housing Finance Private Limited Employee Stock 3966 2245
Option Plan payable
Carporate 187897
Guarantee
Ganesha Fixed Income Limited Borrowings from
Non-convertible 134.00
debentures
DM infotech Scjulullons Private Limited {formely known as DM Investment in equily 358 148
Consumer Credit Private Limiled)
Investment in optionally convertible 752
debentures 83
Ampverse DMI Private Limited Invastment in campulsorily canvertible 9475

preference shares




DM Finance Private Limlted
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
{All Amount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated)

43 In reference to point 2{j){vi){a) of the cansolidated independent auditors report for the year ended March 31, 2024, the Holding Company and one of its subsidiary uses
Navision software for maintenance of accounting data, Management, in view to process large quantum of data on a daily basis, has disabled transaction daily logs in the
accounting soltware to comply with timely reporting. Navision has inherent feature that entry once posted cannot be edited/deleted

44 As per Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 dated October 19, 2023 {as amended from time
to time), Non-banking Financial Companies (NBFCs) are required to create an impairment reserve for any shortfall in impairment allowances under Ind AS 109 and Income
Recognition, Asset classification and provisioning (IRACP) norms (including provision on Standard Asset).The impairment allowances under Ind AS 109 made by the Holding
Company exceeds the total Provision required under IRACP (including Standard Asset provisioning), as at March 31, 2024 and accordingly no amount is required to be
transferred to impairment reserve.

45  Capital
The Holding Company actively manages its capital basc to cover risk inherent to its business and meets the capital adequacy requirements of the regulator, Reserve Bank of
India (RBI),

(i) Capital management:

Objective

The Holding Company's objective is to maintain appropriate levels of capital to support its business strategy taking into account the regulatory, economic and commercial
environment. The Holding Company aims to maintain a strong capital base to support the risks inherent to its business and its growth strategy. The Holding Company
endeavours to maintain a higher capital base than the mandated regulatory capital at all times

Planning

The Holding Company's assessment of capital requirement is aligned to its planned growth which forms part of an annual operating plan which is approved by the Board and
also a long range strategy These growth plans are aligned to assessment of risks- which include credit, liquidity and interest rate

The Holding Company endeavours to maintain its Capital Risk Adequacy Ratio (CRAR) higher than the mandated regulatory norm. Accordingly, increase in capital is planned
well in advance to ensure adeqguate funding for its growth

(ii) Regulatory capital

As at March ii‘ 2024 As at March 31, 2023

CRAR - Tier | capital (%) 43 88% 49,94%
CRAR - Tier Il capital {%) 0.88% 0.93%
CRAR (%) 44.76%* 50.87%

* Reserve Bank of India (RBI} vide circular dated November 16, 2023 on Regulatory measures towards consumer credit and bank credit to NBFCs increased risk weight on
consumer credit exposure from 100% to 125% which had an impact of 986 bps on CRAR, On risk weight of 100%, capital adequacy ratio (including Tier-Il capital) stood at
54 62% as an March 31, 2024

The CRAR is computed as per Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India {Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 dated October 19, 2023
(as amended from time to time)

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Holding Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the
interest-bearing loans and borrowings. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings,

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023

46 Contingent liabilitles and commitments {to the extent not provided for)
a. Contingent liabilities

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Contingent liabilities not provided in respect of:

i Corporate Guarantees given to banks on behalf of fellow subsidiary (note 1) - 3,878.97
Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debt

i Income tax {note 2) . 2.26
Notes :

1. The Holding Company has given corporate guarantees to banks against different facilities to its fellow subsidiary DMI Housing Finance Private Limited of Rs. Nil as at March
31, 2024 {March 31,2023: Rs. 3,878 97 million)

2. During the financial year 21-22, the Holding Company had received an assessment order for FY 2016-17 wherein the assessing officer had made an addition for an amount
of Rs.6.42 millions on account of disallowance of deduction under section 80G of the Income-tax Act, 1961. The Holding Company had appealed before Commissioner of
Income Tax-Appeal {CIT{A)) against the order. This disallowance resulted into an additional demand of Rs. 2.26 million. The Holding Company has received the order from
CIT(A) in it's favour and the appeal effect of the order is yet to be provided

b. Commitments As at March 31,2024 As at March 31, 2023
Commitments for acquisition of property, plant and equipment (net of advances) 717 4,05
Commitments for Intangible assets under development {net of advances) 047 2.90
¢. Others

In case of un-disbursed loan facility, the Holding Company has sole and absolute discretion to allow or reject any further drawdown request. Hence, undrawn commitment
for the Company are amounting to Rs. Nil {previous year Rs. Nil).

d. The Group has other commitments, for purchase of goods and services and employee benefits, in the normal course of business

e, The Graup did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses
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47 Reconclliatlon of liabilltles arising from financlng activities

Particulars Debt securities Borrowlngs otlfer Llabllity against teased Total
than debt securitles assets
April 1, 2022 18,552.27 8,988.07 276.36 27,816.70
Cash flows:
- Repayment (3,219.16) (16,686.20) {70.67) {19,976.03)
- Proceeds 1,500.00 31,517.19 - 33,017.19
Non-cash
- Deferment / amortisation of upfront fees and other charges 480 7028 = 75.08
- Additions during the year = B 10.27 10.27
- Others - - 26.33 2633
March 31, 2023 16,837.91 23,889.34 242.29 40,969.54
Cash flows:
- Repayment (19,879 53) (27,369.22) {78.65) (47,327.40)
- Proceeds 11,888 82 62,808.56 - 74,697 38
Non-cash
- Deferment / amortisation of upfront fees and other charges 14 96 181.43 - 196.39
- Additions during the year . - 7792 77.92
- Others - - 23.73 2373
March 31, 2024 8,862.16 59,510.11 265.29 68,637.56

Note: There is no non cash movement in investing activities except depreciation of Rs. 50.47 millions (previous year Rs. 44.35 millions) in Property, plant and Equipment.

48 Leases
The Holding Company has lease contracts for office and residential spaces taken on lease. The lease terms are between 1 to 10 years.
The Holding Company also has certain lease with lease terms of 12 months or less. The Company applies the ‘short-term lease’ recognition exemptions for these leases

The carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognized and the movements during the period are as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 196.35 234.95
Additions made during the year 77.92 10.27
Amartisation on right of use assets 54.79 48.87
Balance o1 the end of the year 219.48 196.35
The carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the period are as follows:

Partlcilars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 24229 276.36
Additions made during the year 77.92 10.27
Interest accretion for the year 23.73 26.33
Payments made during the year (78.65) {70.67)
Balance at the end of the year 265.29 242.29

The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 10%, with maturity ranging to 2030-31.

The following are the amounts recognized in profit and loss :

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Depreciation expense in respect of right-of-use asset 54.79 48.87
Interest expense in respect of lease liabilities , 2373 26.33
Expense relating to short-term leases (included on other expenses) 9.76 10.76
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 88.28 B85.96

The Holding Company's total cash outflows for leases was Rs 78.65 Millions during the year {previous year Rs 70.67 Millions)

Maturity Analysis of Lease Liabilitles

Particulars March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023
Upto 1 month 5.02 427
Over 1month to 2 month 4.57 4.30
Over 2 months to 3 months 375 4.36
Over 3 months to 6 months 1011 13.47
Over 6 months to 1 year 17.12 28.37
Over lyear to 3 years 8374 71.63
Over 3 years and upto 5 years 70.28 79711
Dherr 5 years 70.70 36.18

Total 265.29 242.29
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49 Tax expenses
The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are :

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current tax 2,226.24 1,523.02
Deferred tax credit (939.20) {397.92)
Income tax expense reported In the statement of profit or loss 1,287.04 1,125.10

The major components of tax expense and its reconciliation to expected tax expense based on the enacted tax rate applicable to the Group Is 25.17%
{March 31, 2023: 25.17%) and the reported tax expense in statement of profit and loss are as follows:

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Profit before tax 5,318 50 4,324.96
Income-tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Expected tax expense 1,338.56 1,088.51
Expenditure an Corporate Social Responsibility disallowed u/s 37 936 4.09
Interest paid to Associated Enterprise disallowed u/s 948 273 2.87
Reversal of DTA on Interest Paid to Associated Enterprise - 3139
Capital Expenditure disallowed u/s 37 5.64 0.63
Difference between accounting income and taxable income an investments {62.41) -

Differential Tax Rate on Long term capital gains {24.07) -

Loss on subsidiary 20.02 -

Others (2.79) (2.39)

Tax expense 1,287.04 1,125.10
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Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities:

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Particulars Within 12 After 12 Total Within 12 After 12 Total
months months months months
ASSETS
FInanclal assets
Cash and cash eguivalents 10,580.18 - 10,580.18 5,699.76 - 5,699.76
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 1,014.58 148.01 1,162.59 421,78 148.47 570.25
Trade receivables 68.86 68.86 312.09 - 312.09
Loans 77,319.94 41,119.92 118,439.86 46,054.51 21,289.96 67,344.47
Investments 3,207 .88 2,504.94 5,712.82 4,24%.70 3,887.10 8,136.80
Other financial assets 1,140.98 28.92 1,169.90 984.20 105.80 1,090.00
Non- financial assets
Current tax assets {net) 148.20 E 148.20 198.76 - 198.76
Deferred tax assets (net) - 2,158.37 2,158,37 - 1,219.4% 1,219.49
Property, plant and equipment - 142.76 142.76 : 143.00 143.00
Capital work in progress 4.68 - 4.68 - - -
Goodwill - 253,53 253.53 - 253.53 253.53
Right to use assets 44.49 174.99 219.48 52.61 143.74 196.35
Intangible assets 30.97 30.97 - 21.66 21.66
Intangible assets under development 2,54 - 2,54 8.78 - 8.78
Other non- financial assets 306.69 9.89 316.58 240.72 9.04 249.76
Assets held for sale 75.00 - 75.00 75.00 - 75.00
93,914.02 46,572.30 140,486.32 58,297.91 27,221.79 85,519.70
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
A) Trade payables
{i) total outstanding dues of micro and small 25.33 - 25.33 8.97 - 8.97
enterprises
(i) total outstanding dues of creditors other than 1,762.91 33.67 1,796.58 1,165.75 . 1,165.75
micro and small enterprises
B} Other payables
(i} total outstanding dues of micro and small - - - - - -
enterprises
(i) total outstanding dues of creditors other than 833,02 17.35 850.37 525.06 - 525.06
micro and small enterprises
Debt securities 1,945.40 6,916.76 8,862.16 15,353.00 1,484.91 16,837.91
Borrowings {other than debt securities) 31,959.88 27,550.23 59,510.11 12,124.73 11,764.61 23,889.34
Lease liabilities 40.57 22472 265.29 54.77 187.52 242.29
Other financial liabilities 488.74 - 488.74 226.08 57.90 283.98
Non financial liabilities
Provisions 3.37 136.07 139.44 2.48 99.83 102.31
Other non-financial liabilities 434,94 4,71 439.65 257.08 4.71 261.79
Equity
Equity share capital - 7,424.87 7,424.87 = 6,567.75 6,567.75
Other equity - 60,660.68 60,660.68 - 35,607.90 35,607.90
Non Controlling Interest - 23.10 23.10 . 26.65 26.65
37,494.16 102,992.16 140,486.32 29,717.92 55,801.78 85,519.70
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Risk management
Introduction and risk profile

The Holding Company is a private finance company in India and is regulated by the Reserve Bank Of India {RBI). in view of the inlrinslc nature of operations, the Company Is exposed to a variely of
risks, which can be broadly classified as llquidity risk, credit risk, interest rate risk and equity price risk It is also subject to various regulatory risks.

Risk managemenl structure and pollcles

As a lending institution, Group is exposed to various risks that are related to [ending business and operating environment. The Principal Obijective in Group's risk management processes is to
measure and monitor the various risks that Group is subject to follow policies and procedures ta address such nisks. Group ‘s risk management framewaork is driven by Board and its subcommittees
including the Audit Committee, the Asset Liability C i and Risk Ci i Group gives due impartance to prudent lending praclices and have implemented
suitable measures for risk mitigation, which include verificatian of credil history from credit information bureaus, personal verification of a customer's business and residence, technical and legal
verifications, conservative loan to value

(A) Lquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the potential for loss to an instilution arising from cither its inability to meet its obligations or to fund increases in assets as they fall due without incurring unacceptable cost or
losses

The Group manages liquidity risk by measuring and managing net funding requirements using a maturily ladder and caleulation of cumulative surplus or deflclt of funds at selected maturlty dates
which has been adopted as a standard tool The Group’s Assets-Liability Committee {ALCO] is responsible for determining the appropriate mix of available funding sources utllized to ensure Group
liquidity is managed prudently and appropriately. With regard to the process of liquidity management, ALCO also considers the current economic and market environment, near-term loan growth
projections and long-term strategic business decisions

The table below summarises Lhe malurity profile of Lhe undiscounted cash flows of Lhe Group’s financial assets and liabilities

March 31, 2024 upto 1 month| Over Imonth Over 2 Over 3 Over 6 months | Over 1year to | Over 3 years | Over5 years Total

to2 month [monthsto3 | monthsto 6 to 1 year 3 years to 5 years

months months

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 10,580 60 = ~ L 10,580 60
Bank balance ather than Cash and cash equivalents 275 24575 23008 59811 160 48 1,23717
Trade receivables 2456 6.06 824 68.86
Loans 11,957.34 11,190,64 10,511 66 26,591.65 35,050 48 45,373.32 3,798.98 1,591.20 146,065.27
Investments 686 76 342,48 35715 97910 1,21371 1,847.79 807 16 51788 6,752 03
Other financial assets 2584 6577 34980 68895 1062 053 1993 B 40 1,169 950
Financlal liabllitles
Payables 1,028.56 506.62 17797 731,60 176 52 51.01 E 2,672,28
Debt securities 344.59 230.91 2,049.54 8,021.38 10,646 42
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 4,225.10 2,256.30 4,069 62 11,469.92 13,874.96 28,517.25 1,651.53 . 66,064,68
Lease liabilities 723 674 588 1633 2884 12091 9029 8264 35886
@ther financial liahilities 206 50 20.12 4407 254 05 48R 74
March 31, 2023 upto 1 month| Over imonth QOver2 Over3 Over 6 months | Over 1year to | Over 3 years Over 5 years Total

to2 month |monthsto3 | monthslo6 to 1 year 3Jyears to 5 years

months months

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalenls 5,699 76 5,699 76
Bank balance other than Cash and cash equivalents 21910 2403 020 178.45 148 47 57025
Trade receivables 27080 4129 . 31209
Loans 5,903 44 7,440 46 7,554 25 16,298.35 16,694.40 22,B12.66 4,959 68 2,170.97 83,A34.22
Investments 51025 20620 1,106 57 1,774 12 1,393.11 3,13362 1,063 70 131327 10,506 84
Other financial assets 34373 31406 32274 367 8191 . 23 89 1,000.00
Financlal Ifabllities .
Payables 336 22 663 34 33703 3955 323.64 1,695 78
Debt securities 298.41 56645 32990 15,450.30 1,762 90 18,407.96
Borrowings {other than debt securities) 3,238 70 669 00 1,553 20 2,790 70 5,484.73 12,071 40 B26 40 * 26,63413
Lease liabilties 629 629 631 1910 38.58 102 01 9552 4165 31575
Other financlal liabilltles 75.49 11226 3835 5789 28398

{B) Credlt risk

Credit risk arises from the potential Lhat an obligor is either unwilling to perform on an obligalion or its abilily to perfarm such abligation is impaired resulting in economic loss Lo the Group. The
Group's credit risk management framework is calegorized into following main components:

- Senior management’s oversight

- Organizational slructure

- Systems and procedures for identification, acceplance, measurement, moniloring and conlrolling risks

It is the overall responsibility of the Group's senior management to approve the Group’s credil risk stralegy and lending policies relaling to credit risk and its managemenl. The policies are based on
the Group’s overalf business stralegy and the same is reviewed every quarter by the senjor management

To maintain credit discipline and 1o enunciate credil risk management and control process there is a separate risk management department independent of loan origination function. The risk
management department performs the function of credit policy formulation, credit limit setting, monitoring of ccedit exceptions / exposures and review /monitoring of docurnentation

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure

Analysis of risk concentralion
The following table shows the risk concentratlon by industry for the financial assets of the Group:

March 31, 2024 Financial |Government | Real estate MSME Services and Retall Others Total
services manufacturing

Financial asset

Cash and cash equivalents 10,580 18 . . . - - - 10,580.18
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 1,162.59 = . - - = 1,16259
Loans - Corporate* 47214 - 3,643 56 476 S8 4,592 28
Loans - Consumer Joans* . 79377 - 113,053 81 - 113,847 58
Trade receivables 4819 * . . 2067 68.B6
Investments* 77876 40353 4,530.47 5,712.82
Other financial assets 168 39 - - - - 1,001 51 1,169.90

Total 13,210.25 4,047.15 793.77 * 113,053.81 6,029.23 137,134.21
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March 31, 2023 Financial |Government| Real estate MSME Services and Retall Others Total
services manufacturing

Financial asset

Cash and cash equivalenls 5,699 76 = - - - - 5,699.76

Bank balance other than Cash and cash equivalents 570.25 - - . 57025

Loans - Corporate* 49.85 8,303 82 + 45917 63129 1314 9,457.27

Loans - Consumer loans™ 57975 57,30745 - 57,887.20

Trade receivables . . 312.09 - 31209

Investments* 693,23 - 61803 ) 3,225.26 - 3,60028 8,136 80

Olher financial assels 248.40 - * 841 60 1,090 00
Total 7,261.49 . 8,921 85 579.75 3,684.43 58,250.83 4,455.02 83,153.37

“Net of Impairment Loss Allowance

{C) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the value of on and off-balance sheet positions of a financial institution will be adversely affected by movements in market rates or prices such as interest rates, foreign
exchange rates, cquity prices, credit spreads and/or commodity prices resulting in a loss to earnmngs and capital
Financial institutions may be exposed to market risk in variety of ways Market risk exposure may be explicit in porlfolios of securities / equities and instruments that are actively raded. Conversely
il may be implicit such as interes rale risk due 1o mismatch of loans and deposils. Besides, market risk may also arise [rom activilies categorized as ofl-balance sheet item Therefore, market risk is
patential lor loss resulting from adverse movernent in market risk laclors such as inleresl rales, orex rates, equity and commodily prices
The Group's exposure to markel risk is primarily on account of interest rate risk and cquily price risk.

Total market risk exposure

Partieulsrs As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 Primary risk sensitivity
ASSETS

Financial assets

investments (Olher than credil substitutes)** 1,63577 4,084 59 (Equlty price

Credit substitutes and pass through certificate™ 4,480 62 5,169 3R |interest rate
LIABILITIES

Financlal labllities

Debt securilies B,862 16 16,837 91 |Interest rate
Borrowings (ol han deh seeurities) 59,510.11 23,R89 34 |interest rate

** Gross of Impairment loss allowance

{1} Interest rate risk:-

Interest rate risk arises when there is a mismatch belween positions, which are subjecl Lo interest rale adjusimenl within a specilied period. The Group's lending, funding and Investment activitles
give rise to interest rale risk. The immediate impacl of varialion in interest rale is on the Group's nel inlerest income, while a long Lerm impact Is on the Group's nel worth since the economic value
of the assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet exposures are aflected While assessing interesl rale risks, signals given to the market by RBI and government departments from time to time and the
linaneial induslry’s reaction ta them shall be continuously monitared

Due to the very nature of financing, the Group is expased ta moderate to higher interest rate risk This risk has a major impact on the balance sheet as well as the income statement of the Group.
Interest rate risk arlyes due to

i Changes in regulatory or market conditions affecting the interest rates
U} Short term vaolatility

(0} Prepayment risk translating into a reinvestment risk

v} Al intereat rate ik,

Interest rate risk exposure

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Variable Rale Borrowings 52,994 37 25,37357
Fixed Rate Barrowings 15,377 90 15,353.68
Interest rate sensitivity
The following table d: ates the ilivity to a possible change in interest rates (all ather variables being constant] of the Group's statement of profit and loss:
Particulars Effect on net profit

Far the year ended Far the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Decrease in SO basis points 17108 71.54
Inceoass in 50 basis points {171 08)| {71.54)

{ii) Equity price risk

Equily price risk is the risk that the fair value of equities changes as the result of changes in the level of equily indices and individual stocks A 10 per cent Increase in the value of the Group's FVOCI
equities at 31 March 2024 would have increased equity by Rs 117.60 millions [Previous year: Rs 330.83 millians). An cquivalent decrease would have resulted in an equivalent but opposlite impact
Further, A 10 per cent increase in the value of the Group’s FVTPL equities at 31 March 2024 would have inereased profits by Rs. 36 50 milllons {Previous year: Rs. 22.70 milllons) An equivalent
decrease would have resulted in an cquivalent but opposite impact

{Ill) Forelgn Currency risk exposure

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group is exposed to foreign currency fluctuation risk for its foreign
currency receivables

{a] The foreign corieney esposufos lor the year shided are as folluws

Particulars As 2l March 31,2024" As at March 3112023"
Tatal hed Total Unhedyed

Trade Recelvables (INR - in millions) 146 146 .

Tratle Reeeliabileg [LSD - 0 milliang] 002 an2

# Including indirect taxes
Nole: There is no hedged loreign currency exposure

(b) Sensitivity Analysis
The following lable demanstrates the sensilivity to a reasonably possible change in loreign exchange rates {all other variables heing constanl) on the Group’s statement of profit and loss:

Partlculars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Decrease by 1% 001)

Increase hy 1% 001 -
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DMI Finance Private Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(All Amount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated)

Impact on falr value of level 3 financlal Instruments measured at falr value of changes to key assumptions

The table summarises the valuation technigues together with the significant unobservable inputs used to calculate the fair value

of the Company’s level 3 assets

and liabilities.

March 31, 2024 Fair value of  Valuation technique Significant unobservable
Level 3 assets inputs

Equity shares in DMI Infotech Solutions Private Limited (Formerly 3.58 Net Worth af Investee Company Instrument price

known as DMI Consumer Credit Private Limited)

7,500 Optionally convertible debentures in DMI Infotech 752.88 Discounted Cash Flows of Instrument Discount margin / spread

Solutions Private Limited (Formerly known as DMI Consumer

Compulsorily convertible preference shares in in Alchemist Asset 34.50 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Instrument price

Reconstruction Company Limited

Compulsorily convertible preference shares in Saarathi Finbiz 160.01 Adjusted Backsolve Method Enterprise value

Private Limited

Equity shares in Alchemist Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 219.24 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Discount margin / spread

Credit Substitutes 213.39 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Discount margin / spread

Non-convertible debentures - unquoted 104 87 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Discount margin / spread

Units of DMI AIF Special Opportunities Scheme 580 Assets under management of units of Instrument price

respective class of Investee Fund
Total 1,494.27

March 31, 2023

Fair value of
Level 3 assets

Valuation technique

Significant unobservable
inputs

Equity shares in DMI Infotech Solutions Private Limited

{Formerly known as DM1 Consumer Credit Private Limited)
Compulsory convertible debentures of Biorad Medisys Private
Limited

Compulsorily convertible preference shares in in Alchemist Asset
Reconstruction Company Limited

Equity shares in Alchemist Asset Reconstruction Company Limited

Credit Substitutes
Equity shares in Flash Electronics Private Limited
Compulsory convertible debentures of Flash Electronics

Non-convertible debentures - unquoted
Equity shares in Azad Engineering Private Limited

Equity shares in Radiant Polymers Private Limited

Units of DMI AIF Special Opportunities Scheme

Total

348

60027

3450

215.76

537.43
818.97
1,560.00

137.80
227.04

100.10
973

4,245.08

Net Worth of Investee Company

Discounted Projected Cash Flows
Discounted Projected Cash Flows
Discounted Projected Cash Flows

Discounted Projected Cash Flows
Discounted Projected Cash Flows
Discounted Projected Cash Flows
Discounted Projected Cash Flows
Discounted Projected Cash Flows
Discounted Projected Cash Flows
Assets under management of units of
respective class of Investee Fund

Instrument price

Instrument price
Instrument price
Discount margin / spread

Discount margin / spread
Instrument price
Discount margin / spread

Discount margin / spread
Discount margin / spread

Discount margin / spread

Instrument price

Quantitative analysis of significant unobservable inputs

Instrument price

Given the nature of this approach, there is no range of prices used as inputs

Discount margln/spreads

Discount margin/spreads represent the discount rates used when calculating the present value of future cash flows. In discounted cash flow models such spreads
are added to the benchmark rate when discounting the future expected cash flows. Hence, these spreads reduce the net present value of an asset or increase the
value of a liability. They generally reflect the premium an investor expects to achieve over the benchmark interest rate to compensate for the higher risk driven by
the uncertainty of the cash flows caused by the credit quality of the asset. They can be implied from market prices and are usually unobservable for illiquid or

complex instruments




DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(All Amount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated)

Sensitivity of fair value measurements to changes in unobservable market data

The table below describes the effect of a 10% movement in the significant unobservable input.
All changes, except for financial instruments at FVOC| would be reflected in Statements of Profit and Loss.

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Favourable Unfavourable Favourable Unfavourable

Particulars
changes changes changes changes

Instruments measured through FVTPL
Equity shares of Azad Engineering Private Limited - - 22.70 (22.70)
Total (A) - - 22.70 (22.70)
Instruments measured through FVTOCI
Equity shares in DN”. Inf?tech S'oh.Jtions Private Limited {Formerly known as 0.36 (0.36) 0.35 (0.35)
DMI Consumer Credit Private Limited)
Equity shares in Alchemist Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 21.92 (21.92) 21.58 (21.58)
Credit Substitutes 21.34 (21.34) 53.74 (53.74)
Non-convertible debentures - unguoted 10.49 {10.49) 13.78 (13.78)
Compulsory convertible debentures of Biorad Medisys Private Limited - - 60.03 (60.03)
Equity shares in Flash Electronics Private Limited = - 81.90 (81.90)
Compulsory convertible debentures of Flash Electronics Private Limited - - 156.00 (156.00)
Equity shares in Radiant Polymers - - 10.01 (10.01)
Units of DMI AIF Special Opportunities Scheme 0.58 {0.58) 0.97 (0.97)
Compulsory.convertlble prefe.rence shares in Alchemist Asset 345 (3.45) 345 (3.45)
Reconstruction Company Limited
Optionally convertible debentures in DMI Infotech Solutions Private Limited 75.99 (75.29)
(Formerly known as DMI Consumer Credit Private Limited) ' '
Compulsorily convertible preference shares in Saarathi Finbiz Private Limited 16.00 (16.00) : .
Total (B) 149.43 (149.43) 401.81 (401.81)
Total (A+B) 149.43 (149.43) 42451 (424.51)

The above analysis has been made without considering the impact of tax.

Valuation methodologies of financial instruments not measured at fair value

Below are the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for the above financial instruments which are not recorded and measured
at fair value in the company’s financial statements. These fair values were calculated for disclosure purposes only. The below methodologies and
assumptions relate only to the instruments in the above tables

Borrowings - At Amortised cost

These includes Term Loans, securitisation and debt securities. The fair values of such liabilities are estimated using a discounted cash flow model based
on contractual cash flows using actual or estimated yields and discounting by yields incorporating the counterparties’ credit risk. These instrument are
classified in Level 3.

Investments - At amortised cost

These includes Credit substitutes & corporate loans, pass thriugh certificates. The fair values of such instruments are estimated using a discounted cash
flow model based on contractual cash flows using actual or estimated yields and discounting by yields incorporating the counterparties’ credit risk.
These instrument are classified in Level 3.

Assets and liabilities other than above
The carrying value of assets and liabilities other than investments and borrowings at amortised cost represents a reasonable approximation of fair value
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DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
{(All Amount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated)

Previous year/periods figures have been regrouped/rearranged to make them comparable with the current year/period classification in accordance with
amendments in Schedule Ill.

There are no event observed after the reported period which have an impact on the Group's operations.

The financial statements were approved for issue by Board of Directors on May 16, 2024,

Disclosure on significant ratios:
Particulars Description As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
iti i Debt
Debt-Equity Ratio [(Deb't .secur|t|es+ Bor.rowmgs {other than De 1.00 0.97
Securities)}/Total equity
Net profit margin Net profit after tax / total revenue from operations 15.19% 19.47%
iti i bt
Total debts to total assets [(Deb‘t .secur|t|e5+ Borrowings (other than De 2B.67% 47.62%
Securities)]/Total assets
Gross Non-Performing Assets Gross Stage |1l loans EAD / Gross total loans EAD 2.61% 3.60%
(Gross Stage |ll loans EAD - Impairment loss
Net Non-Performing Assets allowance for Stage Ill) / (Gross total loans EAD- 1.58% 1.50%

Impairment loss allowance for Stage Il )
Asset cover ratio (no. of times)* Amount of secured assets / Secured debt 1.25 1.28

{Impairment loss allowance for Stage lIl/ Gross Stage

o o,
Il loans EAD ) 40,11% 59.31%

Provision coverage ratio {%)

*It is calculated for listed debt securities
Other Statutory Information

1 During the current financial year, the Group has not undertaken any transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or
section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

2 No penalties were imposed by the regulator during the year during the financial year ended 31 March, 2024.

3 There are no such transaction which are not recorded in the books of account earlier and have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the current
financial year in the tax assessments under the Income tax act, 1961.

4 The Group has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

5 The Group has not received any fund from any person or entity, including foreign entity (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing
or otherwise) that the Group shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or
(b) providerany guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

6 The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

7 No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Group to or
in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities {“Intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries). The Group has not received any fund from any
party(s} (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Group shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or
on behalf of the Group {“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on bebalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

8 The Group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers)
Rules, 2017 for the financial years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

9 There are no transactions of undisclosed income not recorded in the books of accounts

10 No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45
of 1988) and rules made thereunder in the financial years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

11 The Group has utilised the funds raised from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which they were borrowed.
12 The Group has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any of banks, financial institution or any other lender.

13 No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45
of 1988) and rules made thereunder in the financial years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.
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